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Percentage change from
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Cash flow
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(Group share)
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2012

2011

2010

2009

+ 0.4
2,181
71
905
29
3,086

+ 13
2,058
67
1,017
33
3,075

+ 12
1,800
66
914
34
2,714

–4
1,645
68
774
32
2,419

– 14
1,806
72
718
28
2,524

+ 14
2,857
80
697
20
3,554

–5
2,462
79
648
21
3,110

+ 38
2,012
61
1,270
39
3,282

+7
1,287
54
1,084
46
2,371

– 36
1,701
77
510
23
2,211

+ 14
3,033
75
1,038
25
4,071

+3
2,313
65
1,261
35
3,574

+ 22
1,861
54
1,607
46
3,468

+ 0.2
1,619
57
1,231
43
2,850

–9
1,959
69
886
31
2,845

+3
7,410
6,460
13,870

+ 0.3
7,313
6,144
13,457

+1
6,690
6,721
13,411

+8
6,382
6,920
13,302

– 15
6,398
5,881
12,279

468
1,734
108
144

388
1,621
115
129

313
1,432
80
101

253
1,265
87
94

197
1,210
53
78

86

87

64

59

37

(in € million)
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The annual financial statements and management report of Ed. Züblin AG for the 2013 financial year will be
submitted to the operator of the Federal Gazette in electronic form. The management report of Ed. Züblin AG
has been combined with the Group management report for the first time; it is presented from page 8 of this
annual report.
The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG may be requested from the company; the annual financial
statements are available for download from the website www.zueblin.de.
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Dear shareholders, clients and business partners,
dear colleagues and friends of the company,
Züblin again performed very successfully in the 2013 financial year. Many of the parameters of relevance to
the Züblin Group, such as orders received, orders on hand and construction activities, again increased
compared with the previous year.
The uncertainties resulting from the sovereign debt crisis in the euro zone have eased compared with the
previous year. Foreign trade picked up slightly in the course of last year and the euro zone seems to be slowly
emerging from recession. The German economy demonstrated its enduring stability despite conditions
remaining difficult and continued its moderate expansionary course. Favourable financing terms and the
positive situation on the employment market are still supporting economic activity.
Despite the long winter and the floods in eastern Germany, the German construction industry achieved a
2.7% increase in sales compared with the previous year. This increase was also favoured by mild weather at
the end of 2013.
In view of a further improvement in macroeconomic conditions and the positive stimulus for the main German
construction trades provided by the new federal government, such as the creation of new sources of finance
for infrastructure measures combined with ongoing low interest rates, we consider conditions are set fair for
continuing success on the part of the construction industry.
In the 2013 financial year, Züblin again acquired some significant major orders in Germany and abroad. With
the university hospital in Jena, a construction project worth more than € 150 million, Züblin is demonstrating
its highly developed technical expertise in hospital construction. The execution of the six-kilometre long
Albabstieg Tunnel along the new Wendlingen-Ulm railway line is another outstanding project, which we are
constructing on a joint venture basis. In Copenhagen, Züblin has obtained a major order for the construction
of a new combined residential, office and shopping building. We were also tasked with the construction of the
“New Office Airport Stuttgart” to mention only one example from our turnkey construction segment.
The foundation stone for a successful 2014 has therefore been laid. Arithmetically-speaking, our substantial
orders on hand already cover our planned construction activities for more than a year.
Our thanks to all of those who have contributed to our success in the last financial year. We would like to
thank our clients and business associates for the trust they have shown in working with us. This success
would have been impossible without the dedication of our employees and their representatives.

The Management Board

European Central Bank, Frankfurt/Main
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
In the 2013 financial year, the Supervisory Board performed the tasks incumbent upon it by law, the Articles of
Association and its rules of internal procedure.

Collaboration between the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board monitored the Management Board of the company in its management of business.
The Management Board informed the Supervisory Board promptly and comprehensively, both in writing and
verbally, about ongoing business, the status of the company and its subsidiaries and the most important
financial data. In particular, the Management Board examined deviations in the course of business from plans
and targets as well as measures to minimize risk. Key reports by Internal Audit were made available to the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board. Furthermore, the Management Board regularly consulted the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board, in writing and verbally, with regard to particular occurrences.
The Supervisory Board was involved in all decisions that were of fundamental importance for Züblin. The
Management Board submitted all issues requiring approval for resolution by the Supervisory Board. Transactions for which approval by the Supervisory Board was required were examined with the help of documentation from the Management Board and debated extensively in the meetings of the Supervisory Board.
The approval required by law and the Articles of Association was given to the best of our knowledge.

Issues addressed by the Supervisory Board in 2013
The Supervisory Board held four ordinary meetings in the 2013 financial year. In three cases, circular resolutions were passed. As a rule, members of the Management Board participated in meetings of the Supervisory
Board.
In the year under review, the Supervisory Board focused on internal organization, the development of earnings,
investment strategies in the financial sector, construction industry trends in our markets, new business segments and the company’s strategic direction. The Management Board explained the company’s quarterly
financial statements. In the process, the Management Board went into the strategic direction to further
improve the equity ratio of Ed. Züblin AG. The opportunities and risks of new business segments were
discussed in depth. As part of ongoing business, the meetings also dealt with major bids and the risks posed
by existing construction projects. The “Cologne North-South Stadtbahn” project continued to be a regular
topic at meetings of the Supervisory Board in 2013. In addition, the Supervisory Board passed resolutions, in
particular, on the renewal of a financing agreement between STRABAG SE as borrower and Ed. Züblin AG as
lender, amendments to the shareholding structure of BMTI GmbH & Co. KG as well as the transfer of 30% of
the shares in Züblin Construction LLC, Abu Dhabi, to STRABAG AG, Austria. The Supervisory Board also
spent time establishing companies abroad, deciding whether to invest in land and production facilities and
developing timber engineering.
The Supervisory Board also discussed and decided on an adjustment to the rules of internal procedure for the
Management Board.

Committees
The Supervisory Board has established two committees, the Executive Committee and the Co-Determination
Committee in accordance with § 27 Para. 3 of the Co-Determination Act (MitbestG). The Executive Committee met twice in the 2013 financial year. There was no occasion for the Co-Determination Committee to act
in the 2013 financial year.
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Annual financial statements for 2013
The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG compiled by the Management Board and the consolidated
financial statements drawn up under IFRS and the combined management report for Ed. Züblin AG and the
Group for the 2013 financial year, including the accounting records, have been audited by the auditors Warth
& Klein Grant Thornton AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Düsseldorf, – elected by the General Meeting and
commissioned by the Supervisory Board – and have each received an unqualified auditor’s report.
The audit documentation and the Management Board’s proposal on the appropriation of profits, the corresponding audit reports by the auditors, the Management Board’s report on relations with related parties
pursuant to § 312 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) for the 2013 financial year (“report on
relations with related parties”) and the audit report by the auditors on the report on relations with related parties were all submitted in their entirety to the members of the Supervisory Board well before the balance sheet
meeting on 24 April 2014. During this meeting, the Management Board explained the net assets, financial
position and profit situation of the company and the Group in detail. In particular, the Management Board has
established an appropriate internal control and risk management system, which is consistent with the requirements of the company and which seems capable, according to its design and actual application, of recognizing developments which jeopardize the continuance of the company in good time. The auditors reported
on the significant findings of their audit in the Supervisory Board meeting on 24 April 2014. The auditors were
also prepared to provide additional information and answer any questions that members might have.
The questions on the financial statements and audit reports raised by the Supervisory Board were answered.
The Supervisory Board established that there were no objections to be raised against the audit reports and
that the findings of the audit by the auditors were to be approved. The Supervisory Board therefore gave its
consent to the annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG compiled by the Management Board and the consolidated financial statements for the 2013 financial year drawn up under IFRS in the meeting of the Supervisory Board on 24 April 2014. The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG are therefore approved in
accordance with § 172 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG). In its assessment of the position of the
company and the Group, the Supervisory Board concurs with that of the Management Board in its combined
management report for Ed. Züblin AG and the Group.

Foto 2
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Leo 250, Munich
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
The auditors audited the report on relations with related parties by the Management Board and issued the
following auditor's report:
“On the basis of our audit and assessment performed in accordance with professional standards, we confirm
that
1.

the factual statements in the report are correct,

2.

the performance rendered by the company in connection with the legal transactions set out in the
report is not inappropriately excessive,

3.

in the case of the actions set out in the report, there are no circumstances that give rise to an
assessment that differs significantly from that of the Management Board.”

The Supervisory Board has reviewed the 2013 report on relations with related parties including the findings of
the auditors with regard to its completeness and accuracy and has approved the report. According to the
conclusive outcome of the review of the report on relations with related parties and the audit report prepared
by the auditors, there are no objections to the Management Board’s statements at the end of the report on
relations with related parties.
Finally and allowing for financing the planned investments and the equity situation of Ed. Züblin AG, the
Supervisory Board agreed to the Management Board’s proposed appropriation of profits in its meeting on
24 April 2014.

Changes to the membership of the Supervisory Board and Management Board
At the meeting of the Supervisory Board on 12 March 2013, Olaf Demuth was appointed as member of the
Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG with immediate effect until 31 December 2014. Hans-Joachim Rühlig
left the Management Board on retirement on 31 December 2013. The Supervisory Board would like to thank
Hans-Joachim Rühlig for his commendable work for the company and Group over many years. The Supervisory Board has appointed Ulrich Weinmann as member of the Management Board in his place with effect
from 1 January 2014 until 31 December 2014.
There were no changes to the Supervisory Board in the 2013 financial year.
The Supervisory Board would like to thank all members of the Management Board, general managers and
employees of the companies within the Züblin Group for their achievements and their commitment in the very
successful 2013 financial year.
Stuttgart, April 2014
The Supervisory Board

Dr. Jürgen Kuchenwald
Chairman

North-South Stadtbahn, Cologne
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COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
BASIC PRINCIPLES OF THE GROUP
GROUP BUSINESS MODEL
Züblin is the number one in German building construction and construction engineering and undertakes
projects throughout the world. We have been offering our customers a comprehensive range of services for
construction projects of every type and size for 115 years. We create individual, forward-looking solutions
tailored precisely to their requirements. Since the company was founded by the Swiss engineer Eduard Züblin
in 1898, the company has won plaudits through its capacity for innovation, which is reflected in intelligent
engineering, new construction materials and advanced construction methods. Our range of services encompasses all construction-relevant tasks, from turnkey construction through construction engineering, ground
engineering, steel construction, bridge and tunnel construction to public private partnership (PPP). We offer
supplementary services in the areas of fire-resistant and chimney construction, precast concrete plants,
timber engineering, structural maintenance, noise protection and environmental technology.
While Ed. Züblin AG has focused its activities on Germany, its foreign business is largely handled via subsidiaries. A nationwide presence in our core markets, Germany and Benelux, secures us broad market access
and the opportunity to provide intensive client service. We have also operated successfully for years in Europe,
Asia, Canada and Chile. In countries where we do not have a physical presence, we offer selected projects as
direct exports.
The Group’s technical expertise is combined in the Central Engineering Division. To boost our competitiveness
for the future, the Central Engineering Division presses ahead with specialist and interdisciplinary innovations
as part of its research and development. The Central Engineering Division supports the operating units during
the entire construction process, starting in an early acquisition phase via tendering and implementation planning to site management. The Central Engineering Division also manages the issues of sustainability, the environment and corporate social responsibility. Here, we offer holistic energy-efficient solutions for the building’s
entire life cycle, which conserve resources and comply with international standards. The Central Engineering
Division also supports international and national research and development projects outside our company to
still further increase its capacity for innovation.
Züblin attaches a great deal of importance to a partnership-based collaboration with clients and
subcontractors when implementing projects. With our Züblin teamconcept, we offer an innovative and
successful partnering model in building construction, which aims to optimize construction time and costs in
addition to maintaining high quality standards.
Züblin introduced a Group-wide code of ethics some years ago, which shall help define the general conditions
for the conduct of all Züblin employees in their day-to-day work. Following the introduction of this guideline,
both management and employees have been obliged to attach the greatest importance to complying with
legal requirements and internal provisions and to follow defined basic values. Employees have been familiarized with the code of ethics through e-learning training sessions.
Certification via EMB Wertemanagement Bau e.V. was also implemented in February 2014 to provide evidence of the implementation of this code of ethics to our clients, authorities, suppliers and subcontractors.
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DEVELOPMENT, INNOVATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT

New requirements – new opportunities
Previously, optimization of costs was regarded as a strategic guiding principle for competitiveness in the
construction industry. Even though the price is still the crucial factor for awarding contracts for construction
services in most cases, other aspects are becoming increasingly relevant. For instance, many invitations to
tender now contain requirements as to whether the construction materials and components used can be
recycled, as to suppliers’ environmental standards, as to waste management or the avoidance of CO2 in the
construction and operation phase. Züblin has already succeeded in winning the tender for the major
“Bryghus” project in Copenhagen by fulfilling these criteria. IT applications are also becoming more and more
pervasive in all areas of work and life in the construction industry and consequently the industry is becoming
ever more closely interlinked with other sectors.
Innovation was previously limited largely to project-specific improvements at construction sites. However, new
environmental conditions require a new way of thinking in relation to technologies, expertise and also business
models for technically perfect, future-proof solutions. This means that cross-sector thinking, networking and a
systematic approach are the criteria for success for future competitiveness.

Text unterhalb des Fotos bitte etwas
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Data centre, Biere

Networking – succeeding together
Züblin specifically promotes innovations with the aim of carrying out projects more effectively, while achieving
higher standards of quality. The exchange of information and transfer of knowledge between our building sites
and business units are also supposed to be stepped up. In our Central Engineering Division, around 600
highly qualified employees at nine locations support the operating units in tasks in civil engineering and tunnel
construction, in structural construction and in turnkey construction. The Central Engineering Division is also
the centre of expertise and is therefore in charge of the acquisition, planning and execution of research and
development projects.
By networking all departments and trades in the Central Engineering Division, we can work together on an
interdisciplinary basis rapidly and without any unnecessary bureaucracy. Cross-cutting issues are developed
here and information can be exchanged as necessary. By continually maintaining and developing international
innovation networks, we achieve direct contact with potential partners as well as new groups of clients. In
particular, we carry out research and development projects in the areas of building equipment, construction
physics, information & communication technology, energy, building materials technology, civil engineering and
tunnel construction, traffic route construction and safety. The aim is to implement research and development
projects in cooperation with the operating units, so that the construction sites can benefit rapidly from the
expertise gained. The large numbers of development projects are presented in the Group brochure “Research,
Development, Innovation – Projects”, which appears annually.
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COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
EMPLOYEES
Workforce (as at 31/12)
Manual employees
Non-manual employees
Züblin Group

2013
7,397
6,473
13,870

2012
7,414
6,043
13,457

Change
– 17
430
413

Workforce (as at 31/12)
Manual employees
Non-manual employees
Ed. Züblin AG

2013
848
3,382
4,230

2012
908
3,202
4,110

Change
– 60
180
120

To achieve our corporate targets, we focus on the achievement potential and expertise of our employees.
Qualifications, targeted training, motivation and employee loyalty play a central role when it is essential that we
withstand the sector-wide competition and counter the lack of specialist staff. Our employee’s commitment,
achievement potential and knowledge provide the basis for sustained corporate success. To take account of
the requirements of the market and of the competition with regard to the development of our employees as
well, ongoing qualification measures are of particular importance. Technical and personal development is of
particular importance. To this end, a large number of events on construction-specific issues and seminars to
boost communication, management and social skills are provided by the Group academy. The programme is
constantly and specifically adapted to current training requirements and the existing training modules and
series. We have again supported large numbers of employees in their professional training in the reporting
year to ensure that they can cope with the increasing and ever more complex requirements of the industry.
From the bottom to the top – to make the most of the potential, a new career model has been developed,
which points out new development prospects to employees and opens opportunities for individual
development. In addition to a linear career path within the Group structure, there are now opportunities via
expert and project careers. Since each employee offers different qualifications and skills, we attach particular
importance to individual talent and potential. A discussion takes place at least once a year between nonmanual employees at all levels and their managers. This confidential discussion is one of our key management
tools for agreeing technical and career related targets and evaluating them. Employees receive detailed,
structured feedback from highly trained managers.
Talents play a vital role in ensuring the company’s successful development. The aim of personnel development
is to discover and encourage these talents. We therefore even offer special programmes for Bachelor and
Master degree courses as part of our measures to encourage junior staff and provide internships. In an individually tailored trainee programme, talented young people with the requisite academic qualifications are specifically prepared for the demands that will be subsequently placed upon them in the daily working routine.
Under supervision from our experienced technical and management staff, they work in various departments
and are introduced to different areas of the business and to the requirements on our construction sites and
learn to take “the broader view”. These young technical staff members are looked after by an experienced
mentor and by the personnel development team during the trainee programme. Having completed the trainee
programme successfully, the way is open for staff to assume a responsible position in one of the many
technical and commercial areas of our company. As at the reporting date, 31 December 2013, 17 junior staff
members have participated in the Züblin trainee programme.
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We carry out an extensive programme of marketing at universities and secondary schools to secure qualified
and well educated junior staff for our company. We add to the appeal of our company and strengthen our
positive image by participating in numerous university and recruitment fairs, by maintaining individual contact
as part of our university mentoring programme, specifically target advertising – both in print and online – as
well as offering field trips. To meet our expectations in terms of quality in the area of commercial, technical or
industrial training, we need to encourage young people at school and enthuse them about construction or
about a training programme in the construction industry at an early stage. The commercial training centre
established specially for this purpose in Bebra has proved its worth in the context of encouraging our trainees.
Liberated from the daily working routine, knowledge can be conveyed efficiently here – both in terms of
content and the time taken – with the help of optimized teaching methods and materials as an add-on to the
daily “on-the-job” training. As at the reporting date, 31 December 2013, 203 apprentices were employed in
total, of whom 137 were manual employees.
Our development measures are particularly focused on ensuring that our employees are optimally qualified,
have been made aware of their professional perspective and consequently remain committed to the company
in the long term.

Great Mühldorf lake, Reißeck (Austria)
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COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
ECONOMIC REPORT
MACROECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Germany
At 0.4%, growth in price-adjusted gross domestic product (GDP) in Germany was relatively modest in 2013.
Comparatively strong domestic demand prevented the German economy being drawn into the persistent
recession affecting several countries in the euro zone. Even though the euro zone is only emerging from
recession with difficulty, there were signs at the end of 2013 that foreign trade was providing Germany with
additional impetus as the global economy picked up.
The inflation rate fell slightly in Germany in 2013, standing at 1.5%. Construction investment has risen by
2.0% after falling by 1.1% in the previous year.
The shortfall in the German construction industry’s sales caused by the weather in the first months of the year
under review was made up in the second half. Key framework conditions such as low interest rates and high
levels of employment continued to have a positive impact. In total, sales from construction activities were
2.7% up on the figure for the previous year. The key commercial building construction segment posted moderate growth of 1.5% last year. Macroeconomic impetus was not yet sufficient to trigger significant new investments in the industry. Construction of office and administrative buildings benefited from rising employment in
the services sector. “Building construction”, which includes components from residential construction,
commercial building construction as well as public sector commercial construction, increased by 3.8%. The
fact that this more broadly defined type of construction performed better than commercial building
construction is attributable to the sustained upward trend in residential construction.

Park Living, Munich

12 y ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013

FOREWORD
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITOR’S REPORT

The trend in orders received in the main German construction trades was positive particularly in the second
half of the year, exceeding the figure for the previous year by 3.7%. Orders received in commercial building
construction were 2.7% up on the comparable figure for the previous year, while total building construction
saw orders received rise by an impressive 3.9%.
Commodity prices and energy costs have remained relatively stable in 2013. Although the price of steel has
firmed in recent months, at the end of the year under review, it was still slightly down on the figure for the
previous year. Prices for cement and ready-mixed concrete were slightly up on the comparative figures.
The trend in employment in the construction industry was positive again in 2013 thanks to the growth in sales.
Employment levels in the main German construction trades rose by 1.5% compared with the previous year.
Applications for insolvency were 9.5% down on the previous year’s figure.

Other European markets
In large parts of Europe, difficult structural challenges still have to be overcome. Several countries were still
unable to escape from recession in 2013, including the Netherlands. The Dutch construction market remained
in a longstanding process of consolidation and there are no plans by the government to support construction
demand. The Belgian construction industry trended downwards in contrast to previous years. In Austria, as in
Germany, economic growth was low. Construction sales only increased by 0.5% compared with the previous
year. While construction output in Sweden shrank slightly in 2013, the trend in Denmark was distinctly positive.
Growth in construction activity in Norway remained comparatively stable. Norway has withstood the crisis of
recent years better than virtually any other country.
Macroeconomic growth rates in Central and Eastern European countries have been at the low level of the EU
average since the economic crisis. Unlike Southern Europe, the economic situation in most CEE countries has
already improved to such an extent that a moderate economic upswing has occurred. However, apart from a
few exceptions, this has not yet trickled through to the respective construction markets. Substantial levels of
sovereign debt and the resulting difficulties in rescheduling and refinancing policy are forcing Portugal to continue drastic austerity measures. The country remains mired in a severe recession. However, it is likely to be
bottoming out.

Markets outside Europe
Weaker global economic activity also had an adverse effect on macroeconomic growth in developing countries. They also suffered particularly from the reversal in monetary policy by the US Federal Reserve. For the
second year in succession, China, the world’s second largest economy, grew more slowly than at any time
since the end of the 1990s. The government is striving to implement structural reforms as a matter of urgency
and is therefore prepared to tolerate a slower growth rate.
The economy of the United Arab Emirates is on a stable expansionary course. The construction industry
made a moderate recovery in this favourable macroeconomic environment in 2013. However, growth at the
rates seen in the pre-2009 boom is not expected for the moment. In Qatar growth in the construction industry
exceeded the previous year’s substantial figure in 2013.
The construction industry in Chile is enjoying an upturn with construction investment increasing by 5% in
2013. Investment activity in Chile was largely driven by mining and the parts of the electricity and water management industry associated therewith. However, the willingness to invest decreased here.
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COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY*
The course of business for the Züblin Group was mixed in the 2013 reporting year. Despite achieving our
conservative earnings and performance targets and record figures (yet again) for orders received, substantial
losses on two major projects abroad had an adverse effect on earnings. Regional sales in Germany made a
positive contribution to earnings meaning that we were again able to meet our forecast. This was also thanks
to processing substantial numbers of orders for supplementary work.
The current competitive situation on the domestic construction market remains positive for our Group. While
there has been no abatement in the ferocious competition to which medium-sized and smaller projects are
exposed, in the case of major projects, we are benefiting from the reorientation in our major competitors’
business policy and from our partnering model, Züblin teamconcept, which is now well established. Our
excellent liquidity gives us a substantial competitive advantage compared with our competitors in the SME
segment. Backed by substantial orders on hand, we can examine the market and tenders in Germany, in
particular, very selectively, as we are under no pressure to acquire business.
We have completed our move into timber engineering via the acquisition of small and medium-sized companies. We aim to establish ourselves in a market that offers considerable potential for growth in future. By
involving our highly qualified engineers in our Central Engineering Division, we aim to make the construction
material wood competitive for multi-storey buildings among other things. Growth in the Turnkey Construction
and Construction Engineering segments also came in on plan. In addition, Ground Engineering, as a
component of Construction Engineering, opened up new markets in northern Europe.
In detail, the Züblin Group and Ed. Züblin AG performed as follows:

Construction activities

Orders received

Orders on hand

€ million

€ million

€ million

4,000

4,000

4,000

3,500

3,500

3,500

4,071
3,574

3,554
3,000

3,000
3,086

3,075

3,000

3,110

2,738
2,500

2,500

2,000

2,000

2,500
2,351

1,500

1,778

1,773

2,000

2,088

1,500

1,500

1,000

1,000

1,000

500

500

500

0

0
2012

2013

0
2012

2013

Züblin Group
Ed. Züblin AG

* All figures mentioned in the following combined management report may contain rounding differences.
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KKM Kraftwerk Mitte, Dresden

At € 3,086 million, construction activities matched the previous year’s level and our planning figures. Of this
figure, 71% were accomplished in Germany and 29% in other countries. While activities increased in Construction Engineering and matched the level of the previous year in Turnkey Construction, activities fell in
Plants and Specialist Areas. For Ed. Züblin AG, we slightly exceeded our forecast of construction output of
€ 1.7 billion and, at € 1,773 million, matched the previous year’s figure in 2013. Of this figure, 95% were
accomplished in Germany and 5% in other countries. In the company, Construction Engineering fell sharply
compared with the previous year, Plants and Specialist Areas matched the previous year’s figure while
Turnkey Construction was slightly up on the previous year.
Orders received by the Züblin Group rose by 14% compared with the previous year’s figure to € 3,554
million, with Turnkey Construction accounting for the majority of this increase. In Construction Engineering
and in Plants and Specialist Areas, orders received were down on the previous year’s figure. Of the Group’s
orders received, € 2,857 million were attributable to Germany. Essentially, major projects in Germany, such as
the construction of the new university hospital in Jena/2nd phase or the Albabstieg Tunnel near Ulm were
reflected in this figure. An increase in orders received of 8% to € 697 million was achieved abroad; this
included the construction of the “Bryghus” in Copenhagen, for instance. At Ed. Züblin AG, orders received of
€ 2,351 million were also well up on the previous year’s figure, having grown by 13%. The increase was solely
attributable to Germany, which accounted for virtually all orders received, at € 2,320 million.
Overall, the Züblin Group’s very substantial orders on hand achieved in the previous year were increased by
a further 14% to € 4,071 million. While the share attributable to Germany rose sharply by 31%, orders on
hand outside Germany fell by 18%. At the beginning of the year, orders on hand came to just under € 3.6
billion and covered a large part of the total output planned for 2013. At Ed. Züblin AG, orders on hand were
28% up on the figure for the previous year, at € 2,738 million, with Germany posting a particularly impressive
growth of € 661 million to € 2,707 million, while orders on hand outside Germany fell sharply by € 56 million
(– 64%) to € 32 million.
As at the reporting date, 31 December 2013, the number of employees increased by 3% compared with the
previous year to 13,870. The increase is mainly attributable to the integration of employees from MERKProjekt GmbH and Metsä Wood MERK GmbH (both now MERK Timber GmbH).
In the 2013 financial year, the Group achieved its earnings targets. In the case of EBITDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), at € 165 million, we exceeded the figure for the previous year
(€ 157 million) by 5%. As a consequence of higher depreciation on property, plant and equipment, which was
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mainly attributable to a tunnel boring machine in Abu Dhabi, EBIT (€ 108 million) in the Züblin Group fell compared with the previous year’s figure (€ 115 million). Thanks to a marked improvement in “interest”, which
contained default interest for a compromise agreement in addition to contract-related loan interest in the year
under review, earnings before tax for the 2013 financial year, at € 120 million, matched the level of the previous year (€ 119 million). Like 2012, the year closed with earnings after tax of € 87 million.
While business on the domestic market in Germany went very well and equalled our planning figures, we
posted losses on the markets in the Netherlands and Abu Dhabi. While the trend in Turnkey Construction was
very positive in the Netherlands, thanks to the “De Rotterdam” project, additional risk provisions had to be
created for a major infrastructure project. Since this construction project is still not complete, a further impact
on earnings cannot be ruled out given that services still have to be supplied and negotiations for supplementary work are still not complete. In Abu Dhabi, the “Ruwais” project resulted in a significant loss. This project
will be completed in 2014.
In its separate financial statements, Ed. Züblin AG generated earnings from ordinary operating activities of
€ 43 million (previous year: € 75 million). As a consequence of the marked deterioration in the result from
equity participations of € 30 million and despite the increase in “interest”, the company was unable to achieve
the level of the previous year and therefore did not reach its planning figure.

Foto 9

Bridge over the Elbe at Schönebeck
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REPORT FROM THE BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Our business activities are divided into the following three core segments:
•
•
•

Turnkey Construction
Construction Engineering
Plants and Specialist Areas

In the following table, we provide an overview of the key figures from our business segments in 2013.
Business activity remains focused on turnkey construction:
Züblin Group
(in € million)
Turnkey Construction
Construction Engineering
Plants and Specialist Areas

Ed. Züblin AG
(in € million)
Turnkey Construction
Construction Engineering
Plants and Specialist Areas

3HUIRUPDQFH 2UGHUVUHFHLYHG2UGHUVRQKDQG
2,099
806
181
3,086

2,753
663
138
3,554

2,685
1,288
98
4,071

3HUIRUPDQFH
1,460
263
50
1,773

2UGHUVUHFHLYHG
2,097
241
13
2,351

2UGHUVRQKDQG
2,097
615
26
2,738

Turnkey Construction
The business segment Turnkey Construction embraces all building construction activities in Germany and
abroad. Züblin has specialized in the turnkey construction of challenging and complex structures. In 2013, the
geographical emphasis remained in Germany, Belgium and the Netherlands. Our activities in this segment
encompass new construction, the expansion and refurbishment of office, industrial and residential buildings,
shopping centres, hotels, car centres, research establishments, university buildings and other public buildings.
In 2013, the following projects, some of which are on a joint venture basis, are worth mentioning in this segment:
Office and administrative buildings
– Six-storey multi-functional building in the port of Copenhagen (Denmark) with combined residential, office
and retail space and public leisure facilities, playgrounds and restaurants (Bryghus)
– Turnkey construction of an administrative building with an underground car park and outside areas at
Stuttgart airport
– Allianz Campus Unterföhring: turnkey construction of a seven-storey office building with canteen, conference rooms and office space near Munich
– Turnkey extension to the MILANEO shopping and services centre in Stuttgart involving a hotel, an office
building and five residential buildings
– Turnkey construction of a 17-storey office/administrative building with three underground floors at the
Taunusanlage 8 in Frankfurt/Main
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– MainTor Panorama: construction of a new office and retail building with four underground floors and 17
storeys above ground as part of a city centre district development on the former Degussa site in
Frankfurt/Main
– Turnkey construction of an administrative building for Enervie in Hagen (site centralization)
– Planning and turnkey construction of an office complex for two ministries in Potsdam
– Easycredit-Haus: construction of a new office and administrative building with an underground car park and
outside areas in Nuremberg
– Siemens Headquarters Munich: structural work for an office building
– Planning and construction of an office building with staff restaurant using a timber frame construction
method for Stadtwerke Lübeck
– Turnkey construction of an administrative building on the Office Campus Deutz in Cologne
Residential facilities
– Turnkey construction of a new housing estate consisting of 200 residential units: a seven-storey apartment
block and twelve houses (apartments for rent and for owner-occupancy) on the Campus Bockenheim in
Frankfurt/Main
– Adler Quarters: turnkey construction of two new residential buildings consisting of 108 and 117 apartments,
a children’s day care centre and an underground car park in Frankfurt/Main
– MainTor Palazzi: turnkey construction of three apartment blocks consisting of 97 residential units and an
underground car park with 141 spaces in Frankfurt/Main
– Turnkey construction of a new residential building with an underground car park and outside areas in
Frankfurt/Main
– Parkend: turnkey construction of three apartment blocks with an underground car park and outside areas in
the Europaviertel (European quarter) in Frankfurt/Main
– Heimfeld Terrassen: residential building consisting of 113 multi-storey apartments and 23 townhouses
including outside areas and a single-storey underground car park in Hamburg
– Housing estate with ten three- and four-storey buildings and a shared underground car park in Mainz
– Construction of new student housing consisting of 326 residential units and an underground car park on the
former goods station site in Freiburg
– Construction of three building complexes consisting of 143 residential units and 216 underground parking
spaces in Böblingen
– Turnkey construction of 425 student apartments with an underground car park in Munich
Shopping, commercial centres and hotels
– Upper West: construction of a high-rise complex consisting of a timber-framed building and a tower with 34
storeys on the Kurfürstendamm in Berlin
– Aquis Plaza: construction of a multi-storey retail and services centre as well as an adjacent multi-storey
office building in Aachen
– Construction of the Forum shopping and cultural centre in Hanau
– Extension of the existing Weserpark shopping centre in Bremen: a new single storey building with a parking
deck and plant rooms
– Turnkey construction of a hotel with 256 rooms as well as an adjacent conference and restaurant area in
Hamburg
Schools, university and cultural buildings
– Second phase of the construction of a new university hospital in Jena: 15 clinics and departments with 710
beds, twelve operating theatres and facilities for research and teaching
– Construction of new stages for the state operetta and Junge Generation theatre in Dresden

18 y ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013

FOREWORD
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITOR’S REPORT

– Construction of a laboratory and research building with office space for the research and technology centre
in Hamburg-Finkenwerder
– Mærsk Bygningen: extension for the University of Copenhagen containing a canteen, lecture theatres,
classrooms and technical equipment as well as a 14-storey high-rise building with laboratories, offices and
public areas
– Turnkey construction of a five-storey building for the faculty of electrical and mechanical engineering at the
University of Applied Sciences in Düsseldorf
– Planning, demolition and construction of new vocational schools in the Pinneberg district in four phases
while the schools were still providing courses
– Construction of the new VfL stadium with space for events, a multi-functional building, training facilities and
outside areas in Wolfsburg
– Construction of a new integrated comprehensive school with associated sports facilities, assembly rooms
and a district centre for cultural and social events in Hanover
– Noordwestcluster: construction of a new research and laboratory building at the University of Utrecht
(Netherlands)
Industrial buildings
– Structural work for the construction of a new TDI plant for BASF in Ludwigshafen
– Construction of a new hall plus extension of existing facilities for repairing trains and an administrative
building in Liège (Belgium)

Construction Engineering
The Construction Engineering segment is dealt with internationally. In countries where we do not have a
physical presence selected construction projects are handled as direct exports. This business segment will
become even more important because of a large number of planned infrastructure projects.
The spectrum encompasses power stations as well as bridge construction, ground engineering, such as the
construction of excavation pits even in complex conditions, through to the high-quality construction of bored
piles or ground freezing, hydraulic engineering including port or lock construction, tunnel construction and
other construction engineering.
The following construction projects (some of which are on a joint venture basis) were significant for this
segment in 2013:
Power station buildings
– Structural work for the extension of the power plant in Guacolda (Chile)
Transport infrastructure
– Increase in the order for the construction of a 1.6 km long road tunnel using the cut and cover method in
Copenhagen
– Bridge using ramp construction with sheet piles over an existing motorway in Copenhagen, noise barriers
– Design, procurement and construction of 35.8-km and 15.3-km-long sewers and ducts on Abu Dhabi
Island and Yas Island (UAE)
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Bridges
– Completion of a new railway bridge in Årsta (Sweden)
– Construction of 20 new bridges for a 17 km long high-speed railway line (New Line Copenhagen–Ringstedt)
Tunnels
– Two-tube railway tunnel (5.9 km) for the new stretch of railway from Wendlingen to Ulm with intermediate
access galleries (400 m) and portal (Albabstieg Tunnel)
– Construction of a 3.2 km long entrance tunnel in Chile
Hydraulic structures
– Construction of a new supply culvert at the Kiel lock

Plants and Specialist Areas
This business segment comprises steel construction, building services engineering, precast concrete plants,
plant and chimney construction, environmental technology, timber engineering, the operation of car parks and
services for niche markets.
In its core business, the construction of power plants and other plants, Züblin Stahlbau GmbH, Hosena,
held its own in the face of persistently tough competition. Continuing falling demand for major power stations
– due to the change in energy policy in Germany and due to the debt crisis in the rest of Europe – was made
up especially by increased demand from the chemicals industry and commercial construction. Here, the implementation of a major plant for the production of pesticides in the Brandenburg region should be emphasized in particular. Our bridge and steel hydraulic construction branch has also established itself on the
market.
Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH, Stuttgart, operates in the field of environmental remediation comprising
groundwater, soil and vapour clean-up as well as pollutant remediation and site rehabilitation from six
locations in Germany. Through its presence in France, Italy, Poland, Romania and Switzerland, it ranks as one
of the leading companies in Europe in this area. Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH sells technical equipment
throughout the world to, among others, various globally active groups in the pharmaceuticals and
petrochemicals sectors. Apart from services such as leasing, servicing and operation of technical equipment
for environmental remediation, Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH also provides consultancy services.
The activities of our precast concrete plants in Karlsruhe and Gladbeck are concentrated on the production
of concrete components for building construction and civil engineering, of noise protection elements and of
high-quality concrete façades. The investment in the Gladbeck plant, which took place in 2012, led to a
marked increase in productivity at the circulating plant. The product range was extended to include the production of concrete sleepers.
In the construction of furnaces and industrial chimneys, Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH ranks
among the leading specialist companies. The range of products and services encompasses the construction
of new plants as well as the redevelopment, modernization, inspection and servicing of existing plants to bring
them in line with the best available technology. In-house engineering departments with specialist technical
expertise develop tailor-made solutions – using 3D-based construction programmes among other things – to
meet the individual requirements of our clients. The company offers services in power station construction, in
the construction of waste incineration plants, in petrochemicals, in the steel and non-ferrous sector as well as
in the chemicals industry and in industrial protection against heat, cold and fire.
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Elephant enclosure, Zürich zoo, timber construction

The expansion of the new timber engineering business segment also continued steadily in 2013. With the
acquisition of Metsä Wood Merk GmbH (now MERK Timber GmbH) in Aichach as well as the establishment of
a SF-timber engineering segment in Stuttgart, the range of products and services was expanded to include
the production of cross-laminated timber boards and the construction of complex turnkey timber construction
projects. Through the collaboration of the respective timber engineering units with building construction and
construction engineering, tailor-made hybrid solutions can be developed and constructed in addition to commercial building structures. The extensive research and development programme started in 2013 will be extended and continued in 2014 and will allow us to get involved in the implementation of innovative structural
elements and projects for the future. Against the background of these structural options and the more stringent ecological demands placed on our clients, the use of wood for building purposes is becoming very attractive.
PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG in 2013 managed ca.16,500 parking spaces in more than 50
parking facilities in Germany, such as stand-alone parking facilities but also in shopping centres, hospitals,
cultural and leisure facilities. The company again further expanded its market share in 2013. As an investor
and operator in collaboration with Ed. Züblin AG as subcontractor, PARK SERVICE HÜFNER constructed the
new car park at the Schwarzwald-Baar clinic in Villingen-Schwenningen providing a total of 485 parking
spaces, which was opened with the new clinic in July 2013.
The range of services of Züblin Gebäudetechnik GmbH, which is headquartered in Erlangen, encompasses
heat technology, refrigeration, ventilation and air-conditioning, sanitary engineering, process measuring and
control technology and utilities supplies. In 2013, the offices in Wiesbaden, Cologne and Munich were expanded successfully. In Frankfurt/Main, we implemented the VTB-Bank projects (heating, sanitation,
refrigeration, air-conditioning, process measurement and control, sprinklers) as well as Deutsche Telekom
AG’s distribution and service centre (heating, sanitation, refrigeration, process measuring and control) and in
Cologne, the CECAD research centre (heating, refrigeration, steam) at the University of Cologne.
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PROFIT SITUATION, FINANCIAL POSITION AND NET ASSETS
GROUP

Balance sheet of the Züblin Group (IFRS - abbreviated version)

Non-current assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Financial assets
Other
Current assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other
Assets

31/12/2013
€ million
355
331
12
12
1,379
508
695
176
1,734

31/12/2012
€ million
365
320
16
29
1,256
477
624
155
1,621

468
235
185
50
1,031
123
745
163
1,734

388
235
185
50
998
110
715
173
1,621

2013
€ million
3,024
33
– 2,135
– 597
– 157
–3

2012
€ million
2,799
51
– 1,985
– 560
– 153
5

165

157

– 57
108
12
120
– 33
87

– 42
115
4
119
– 32
87

Equity
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Other
Current liabilities
Provisions
Trade payables
Other
Liabilities

Income statement of the Züblin Group (IFRS - abbreviated version)

Total operating performance
Other operating income
Cost of materials and purchased services
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Results from equity participations
Earnings before interest, taxes depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA)
Amortization/depreciation of intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)
Interest
Earnings before taxes
Taxes on income
Earnings after taxes
Leo office complex (Poseidonhaus), Frankfurt/Main
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Consolidated profit situation
In the 2013 financial year, the total operating performance consisting of sales revenues, change in
inventories and capitalized services within the Züblin Group increased by ca. 8% to € 3,024 million (previous
year: € 2,799 million). Again, it was Germany that contributed to this increase, while business abroad declined.
The sales revenues only provide an incomplete picture of performance rendered during the financial year.
Therefore, the Group’s entire economic performance is shown, which also comprises the proportionate performance in joint ventures and investments.

Construction activities of the Züblin Group

according to geographical region

according to business segment
71 %

Germany
€ 2,181 million

68%

Turnkey Construction
€ 2,099 million

19 %

Other European countries
€ 588 million

26 %

10 %

Countries outside Europe
€ 317 million

Construction
Engineering,
Tunnel and Ground
Engineering
€ 806 million

6%
€ 3,086 million

Plants and
Specialist Areas
€ 181 million
€ 3,086 million

Other operating income returned to normal in the 2013 reporting year, reaching € 33 million (previous year:
€ 51 million). The previous year’s figure benefited, in particular, from the retransfer of provisions and the effects
of two foreign companies being deconsolidated.
The percentage of expenses for materials and subcontractor work in relation to the total operating
performance was stable and, as in the previous year, came to 71%. At 20%, the personnel expenditure quota
matched the previous year’s figure.
The increase in “other operating expenses” from € 153 million to € 157 million must be viewed as proportionate to the increase in performance.
EBITDA only rose slightly compared with the previous year, by ca. € 8 million to € 165 million, despite the
marked rise in performance. Losses in Abu Dhabi, in particular, but also on a major project in the Netherlands,
led to this disproportionately small increase in the parameter.
At € 57 million, depreciation was well up on the previous year’s figure (€ 42 million) in 2013 and was consequently the main factor behind the decrease of € 7 million in (%,7 (€ 108 million). The increase in depreciation
was mainly attributable to the project-related investment in a tunnel boring machine, which is being used in
Abu Dhabi.
The increase in “interest” to € 12 million (previous year: € 4 million) was, in particular, attributable to interest
income from contract finance and default interest awarded by the courts following a successful lawsuit.
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At € 120 million, EBT matched the level of the previous year (€ 119 million).
At 28%, the tax ratio was also unchanged.
The earnings after taxes for the 2013 financial year were unchanged at € 87 million.

Consolidated financial position
Cash flow statement of the Züblin Group

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Change in cash and cash equivalents from ongoing operating activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents from investment activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents from financing activities
Cash changes in cash and cash equivalents
Changes in consolidated companies/currency differences
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2013
€ million
624
166
– 70
– 24
72
–1
695

2012
€ million
611
86
– 88
13
11
2
624

In the year under review, cash inflows from ongoing operating activities stood at € 166 million and were consequently € 80 million above the level of the previous year (€ 86 million). After deducting cash outflows from
investment activities (€ – 70 million) and financing activities (€ – 24 million), a net inflow of liquidity of € 72
million (previous year: € 11 million) remained.
The cash inflow from ongoing operating activities was mainly attributable to the profit adjusted for cash expenses and income (€ 150 million) and a reduction of around € 17 million in the capital commitment in net
current assets.
Slightly reduced investment in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment of € 75 million in total as
well as increased revenues from disposals of fixed assets led to a reduction in the cash outflow from
investment activity of € 18 million.
The planned repayment of bank liabilities for the “Weser-Ems-Halle, Oldenburg” PPP project (€ 22 million),
which were still included last year, resulted in a cash outflow of around € – 24 million as part of the financing
activities, having posted a cash inflow of € 13 million in the previous year.
At € 680 million, net liquidity (balance of cash and cash equivalents/securities and current and non-current
financial liabilities) was well up on the comparative figure for the previous year (€ 583 million).

Principles and aims of financial management
The Züblin Group’s financial management ensures that the Group has sufficient financial flexibility at all times.
In addition, a zero-balancing cash pooling system ensures that any liquidity in the Group is aggregated and
managed centrally. All relevant Group companies are included in the financial planning. The Group’s liquidity is
planned on an annual basis. Liquidity planning is subjected to a monthly variance analysis.
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Ed. Züblin AG has credit facilities in the double-digit millions at its disposal but, in view of the company’s
continuing excellent liquidity position, these constitute fall-back lines if anything and may also be used by
other companies in the STRABAG SE Group. They do not give rise to any liability risks.
The Züblin Group has sufficient guarantee facilities via its participation in a STRABAG SE syndicated guarantee facility and, apart from this, via bilateral credit facilities with banks and credit insurers. Since 12 October
2010, the syndicated guarantee facility offers a total volume of € 2.0 billion; however, this may also be used
by other companies in the STRABAG SE Group. This does not give rise to any additional liability risks.

Consolidated net assets
As at 31 December 2013, the balance sheet total in the Züblin Group increased by 7% to € 1.7 billion (previous year: € 1.6 billion). The acquisition of Metsä Wood Merk GmbH, which has now been merged within the
Group, only had a minor impact on the company’s net assets.
There were only minor changes to the balance sheet structure on the assets side, albeit fixed assets are tending to become less significant compared with current assets. Fixed assets rose in particular because of
investments in property, plant and equipment. These totalled € 75 million in the Group, of which around € 41
million are attributable to technical equipment. While investment intensity decreased by 1% to 20% despite a
slight increase in fixed assets from € 336 million to € 343 million, the ratio of current assets (including
liquidity) increased from 77% to 80%. This increase was the result of a receivable due from a private client’s
project financing and a further increase in liquidity from € 624 million to € 695 million.
Non-current assets of € 355 million (previous year: € 365 million) were balanced by equity of € 468 million
(previous year: € 388 million) and non-current liabilities of € 235 million (previous year: € 235 million).
The equity ratio in the Züblin Group again rose by three percentage points and now stands at 27%. Equity
(including minority interests) is shown at € 468 million as at 31 December 2013 (previous year: € 388 million).
At € 235 million, non-current liabilities remained at the level of the previous year and equated to 14% (previous year: 15%) of the balance sheet total. In particular, € 122 million related to pension commitments and
€ 63 million to construction-related provisions. At € 33 million, current liabilities (€ 1,031 million) only rose
slightly. Trade liabilities contributed € 31 million to this increase.
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ED. ZÜBLIN AG
Ed. Züblin AG prepares its annual financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG). The management report of Ed. Züblin
AG is combined with the Group management report. The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG and its
legal components are published in full in the Federal Gazette. They may be requested from the company and
are also available on the Internet.

Balance sheet of Ed. Züblin AG (HGB)

Fixed assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Financial assets
Current assets (incl. pre-paid expenses)
Inventories, other receivables and other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets
Equity
Provisions
Other liabilities
Liabilities

31/12/2013
€ million
213
140
73
862
258
604
1,075

31/12/2012
€ million
205
124
81
775
228
547
980

165
220
690
1,075

141
212
627
980

2013
€ million
1,755
24
.
25
– 1,382
– 285
– 18
– 68
– 18
10
43
4
– 22
25
.
– 13
12

2012
€ million
1,373
311
.
33
– 1,287
– 273
– 16
– 80
12
2
75
1
– 16
60
.
– 34
26

Income statement of Ed. Züblin AG (HGB)

Sales revenues
Change in inventories
Other capitalized services
Other operating income
Cost of materials
Personnel expenses
Depreciation/amortization
Other operating expenses
Results from equity participations
Interest
Result from ordinary operating activities
Extraordinary result
Taxes on income and earnings
Net income for the year
Profit carried forward
Allocation to other retained earnings
Net profit
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The profit of Ed. Züblin AG is largely shaped by its own operating activities and by the results of its equity
participations in subsidiaries. The main equity participations in Germany are combined under DYWIDAG Bau
GmbH and linked with it via a profit and loss transfer agreement. Relevant foreign equity participations and
activities are held, in particular, by Züblin International GmbH and by Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH.
Ed. Züblin AG closed the 2013 financial year with net income for the year of € 25 million, which is € 35
million down on the level for the previous year. This fall was the result of absorbing a subsidiary’s losses, which
were largely caused by a loss-making project in Abu Dhabi. Due to invoicing issues, sales revenues rose
sharply compared with the previous year by 28% to € 1,755 million (previous year: € 1,373 million). Taking
account of changes in inventories, the total operating performance was around 6% up on the previous year’s
figure.

Construction activities of Ed. Züblin AG

according to geographical region

according to business segment
95 %

Germany
€ 1,682 million

82 %

Turnkey Construction
€ 1,460 million

4%

Other European countries
€ 75 million

15%

1%

Countries outside Europe
€ 16 million

Construction
Engineering,
Tunnel and
Ground Engineering
€ 263 million

3%
€ 1,773 million

Plants and
Specialist Areas
€ 50 million
€ 1,773 million

Other operating income again decreased to the present figure of € 25 million and was consequently once
more € 8 million down on the previous year’s figure, which was affected by write-ups on financial assets and
substantial claims for insurance refunds.
The percentage of expenses for materials and subcontractor work in relation to the total operating
performance according to the income statement again changed from 76% to 78%. The personnel
expenditure quota remained unchanged at 16%.
At € 68 million, other operating expenses were around € 12 million down on the figure for the previous year.
Here, the fall was in particular attributable to a reduction in the allocation to construction-related provisions.
The results from equity participations of Ed. Züblin AG (€ – 18 million) was significantly affected by the
assumption of a loss by Züblin International GmbH amounting to € 28 million. This compares with a positive
result of € 12 million in the previous year. At € 10 million, “interest” was well up on the previous year’s figure of
€ 2 million. This increase was mainly supported by interest income on project finance for a private client and
also by default interest awarded by the courts following a successful lawsuit.
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The extraordinary income of € 4 million resulted from the repayment of the remaining amount of a waiver of a
receivable due from N.V. STRABAG Belgium S.A. granted in previous years.
The company closed the year with a profit before taxes of € 47 million (previous year: € 76 million) and after
taxes of € 25 million (previous year: € 60 million).
While cash and cash equivalents again increased by € 57 million compared with the previous year to € 604
million, net liquidity, which takes account of financial liabilities, was again € 78 million up on the figure for the
previous year, at € 596 million. This change was mainly the result of cash inflows from ongoing operating
activities of € 98 million and cash outflows from investment activity of around € 19 million. Financial liabilities of
€ 5 million (previous year: € 26 million) related to short-term bridging finance for the “University Hospital Jena”
project. No use was made of credit facilities in the past financial year.
Compared with the previous year, the balance sheet total again rose by € 95 million or 10% to € 1,075 million
(previous year: € 980 million).
The fixed assets of Ed. Züblin AG increased from € 205 million to € 213 million. While property, plant and
equipment – and technical equipment in particular – posted a sharp increase of 13% or € 16 million, the
carrying amounts of financial assets were down on the figure for the previous year. Property, plant and equipment included investments of € 38 million, which were balanced by depreciations of € 18 million. A book profit
of € 6.7 million accrued on the sale of properties (previous year: € 0.7 million). The fall in financial assets can
be explained, in particular, by the repayment of part of the capital reserve of DYWIDAG Bau GmbH.
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Current assets rose by € 87 million to € 862 million. The key factor behind the increase was the granting of a
loan to one of Ed. Züblin AG’s equity participations to finance a construction project that will be handled by
Züblin. The stock of unfinished buildings before offsetting against advance payments made was only slightly
above the level of the previous year despite a significant increase in sales revenues compared with 2012.
However, unlike in the previous year, the settlement reserve for unfinished construction projects rose sharply in
relation to the build-up in the total stock. In the year under review, large numbers of negotiations for
supplementary work were concluded. New receivables for supplementary work accrued, although these are
still only capitalized in justifiable exceptional cases. In principle, approvals of supplementary work therefore
lead to positive results because the additional costs caused by the supplementary work are immediately
recognized as expenditure in the projects but not as performance.
As at the balance sheet date, 31 December 2013, equity stood at € 165 million (previous year: € 141 million).
This equated to an equity ratio of 15% (previous year: 14%). Of the net income for the year under review of
around € 25 million, allocations of € 13 million were made to other retained earnings in accordance with § 58
Para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
At € 220 million, provisions were slightly up on the figure for the previous year (€ 212 million). While tax- and
construction-related provisions rose slightly because of the increase in construction activities, obligations
resulting from pensions decreased.
At the end of the financial year, liabilities amounted to € 690 million and were consequently 10% or € 63
million higher than the previous year’s figure. The increase was mainly the result of the growth in trade
payables.
The financial position of Ed. Züblin AG and the Group was therefore positive by and large.
The share capital of Ed. Züblin AG amounts to € 20,451,675.25 and is divided into 8,000,000 no-par shares.
The General Meeting of Ed. Züblin AG on 11 July 2013 resolved to pay a dividend of € 0.1025 per no-par
share entitled to dividends (= € 820,000.00) from the net profit from the 2012 financial year of
€ 26,214,523.80, to allocate an amount of € 25,394,000.00 to other retained earnings and to carry the
remaining amount of € 523.80 forward to new account. Of the net income for the year under review,
€ 12,368,000.00 were allocated to other retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German
Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
The Management Board is proposing to pay a dividend of € 0.1025 per no-par share entitled to dividends
(= 8,000,000 shares), which is € 820,000.00 in total, to the shareholders from the net profit for the 2013
financial year of € 12,368,596.10, to allocate an amount of € 11,548,000.00 to other retained earnings to
further strengthen shareholders’ equity and to carry the remaining amount of € 596.10 forward to new
account.

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT
At its meeting on 11 March 2014, the Supervisory Board approved the acquisition of a division of Ludwig
Voss GmbH and STRABAG Wasserbau GmbH with the equipment associated therewith retrospectively to
1 March 2014. This will allow a further expansion of Züblin construction’s “Ports and Coast” segment.
There have been no other events of particular significance.
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FORECAST REPORT FOR THE 2014 FINANCIAL YEAR
According to the assessment by the World Bank, the global economy will grow significantly in 2014. Emanating from positive economic growth in the USA, a sustained recovery has started in industrialized countries.
Although the problems of the debt crisis and the structural deficits in the euro zone have not yet been resolved, growth will strengthen again in this region according to the World Bank. For Germany, the federal
government expects economic growth of 1.8% for 2014. In the current upturn, private consumption will
continue to play an important role in supporting economic activity. Investment is likely to pick up significantly
and provide a second foundation for growth. According to the main association of the German construction
industry, the upturn in economic activity will improve the prospects for the German construction industry in
2014. Nominal growth in sales of 3.5% – helped by the mild winter – is forecast for the main German construction trades. The substantial orders on hand in commercial building construction at the beginning of the
year offer a good starting point for 2014. However, the companies’ willingness to invest still has to increase
over the rest of the year to achieve the forecast growth in sales of 3% for commercial building construction.
For commercial construction as a whole, forecast growth is somewhat lower, at 2.5%. The main association is
expecting a positive trend in public sector construction with forecast growth of 3.5%.
In Belgium, the construction industry will grow again in 2014 according to the current forecast from Euroconstruct. The long-term trend remains positive. Consolidation in the Netherlands is forecast to continue. It is
assumed that the Austrian construction industry will experience a perceptible revival. Long-term stable growth
is also expected for construction activity in Norway.
Overall, Euroconstruct is forecasting growth in construction sales for countries in Central and Eastern Europe
over the next few years, which is consistent with the EU countries’ cautiously optimistic trend. These
economies cannot escape economic developments among the more established European countries.
Forecasts for the Portuguese construction industry are also negative in 2014. Moderate growth is possible in
subsequent years.
The economic prospects for developing countries remain attractive in the medium-term because they can still
grow two to three times more rapidly than industrialized countries. This is also true of Züblin’s markets outside
Europe. Dynamic population growth and increasing urbanization will lead to a strong demand for residential
and infrastructure projects here in the long term. However, countries with structural problems are threatened
by capital flight. If the respective central banks are forced to raise interest rates to stabilize their currencies,
this will have a negative effect on growth.
Growth in the People’s Republic of China will slow further in 2014. On the one hand, China has a great deal of
pent-up demand and needs substantial growth to be able to cope with the problems in its development. On
the other hand, existing imbalances in the economy, such as borrowing by local governments and the property bubble, must be tackled.
The dynamic services sector in Dubai and Abu Dhabi’s substantial oil income are also likely to secure growth
of 4% to 5% for the United Arab Emirates in the medium-term. It is assumed that the stable growth trend will
continue in 2014. Numerous large-scale projects in the transport sector and urban construction are either
being planned or are already being implemented. In Qatar, strong growth in the construction industry is guaranteed through numerous mega-projects.
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Construction investment in Chile should increase by 4% in 2014. Key assignments include the expansion and
modernization of public infrastructure as well as commercial construction in the private sector. With the exception of the energy sector, private investment is expected to stagnate while the public sector will increase
its expenditure slightly in 2014. The large mining companies, in particular, are attractive clients for Züblin in
Chile. The future trend in the copper price is crucial to Chilean mining. Stable exports to China and falling
copper stocks point to the price trending upwards.

Development of the Züblin Group and the company
Züblin strives constantly to expand its market position as the most technologically advanced construction and
civil engineering company in Germany – its core region – and in Benelux. Market leadership in Germany and
the closure of “blank spots” are supposed to be secured through targeted acquisitions of regionally
embedded small and medium-sized companies and through organic growth.
To improve our balance sheet’s ability to carry risk, we are still committed to increasing the equity ratio to 30%.
For the 2014 financial year, we are expecting – even allowing for opportunities and risks (see opportunities
and risk report) and the forecast economic situation in the construction industry – a slight increase in total
operating performance compared with the previous year to around € 3.2 billion for the Züblin Group. At the
end of 2013, orders on hand stood at ca. € 4.1 billion, of which around 60% will be concluded in 2014.
Consequently, a large part of our planned performance in 2014 has already been acquired. On the basis of
our traditionally conservative valuation approach, we forecast a consolidated profit equal to that of the previous year.
For Ed. Züblin AG, we are forecasting stable development for 2014 with a performance of € 1.76 billion, which
is slightly below that achieved in 2013. Of the orders on hand of € 2.74 billion reported on 31 December 2013
(previous year: € 2.13 billion), around € 1.5 billion will be reflected in the performance of the current financial
year. For our company’s separate financial statements, we are expecting far higher profits than in the year
under review. We expect profits to be driven by a sharp fall in losses to be absorbed from equity participations
and the settlement of several profitable large-scale projects.
Our core expertise in turnkey and civil construction, ground engineering and steel construction as well as the
new timber engineering segment is intended to be expanded further. To this end, measures such as the
strengthening of central procurement, an even closer integration of the Central Engineering Division and the
creation of centres of expertise for specialist problems will be implemented. The comprehensive research and
development programme started in the timber engineering segment in 2013 will be expanded and continued.
Against the backdrop of its structural opportunities and increased ecological requirements, the use of wood
for construction purposes is of great interest for our clientele. We wish to provide evidence of our range of
goods and services and ability to innovate in timber engineering through a few pilot projects in 2014.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND RISK REPORT
Because of the size and complexity of the projects in which it is involved as well as the time taken to complete
them, the Züblin Group is exposed to a variety of risks, which are recorded and assessed with an active risk
management system and managed with the help of an adequate risk policy. The active risk management
system serves to recognize any risks that would jeopardize the company promptly, to avoid them and to
reduce them.
In its organization, Züblin’s risk management system builds on its project-related systems for controlling acquisitions and construction sites, supplemented by the higher-level audit and control management tools and supported by a variety of regulations and actions including an accredited quality management system, internal
Group guidelines governing workflows in the operating sub-divisions, in the department responsible for controlling, in the legal support for operational units, in Contract Management, in Finance and in Internal Audit. All
regulations and actions are regularly monitored by Internal Audit and by the departments responsible for technical and commercial controlling. Legal support starts in the tender phase and continues through all phases of
the project. The Contract Management department supports us in processing orders for supplementary work
and in enforcing our claims. By monitoring construction materials on construction sites, we ensure that they
are used correctly. Internal training and continuing professional development of our employees constitute an
additional element of our risk management. By combining key processes in our Central Engineering Division
and our centralized procurement, we are able to recognize risks in good time. These units are also integrated
in our processes where this is advisable.
The Group’s trans-regional and decentralized structure means that it is essential that all employees are aware
of the technical and economic risks associated with their work and manage them consciously. All managers
are obliged as part of their role to carry out a risk identification process with their employees, to monitor these
risks, to initiate any countermeasures that may be needed to defend the company from these risks and to
pass relevant information about risks to other offices or levels within the company. In principle, the project
risks that are typical of our core business are managed by the respective construction site team. As risks
become more complex and more significant in economic terms, the technical and commercial managers or
Management Board members must be kept informed. In each case, the next level up this reporting chain will
check the relevance of the identifiable risks in accordance with the risk management system and will pass the
information up the reporting chain. Parallel to this, the central service areas will prepare periodic analyses and
reports on our Group’s economic situation.

Project opportunities and risks
Following the selection of the projects to be handled in accordance with criteria such as available capacity
and expertise, the selection is reviewed centrally using acquisition lists. If the selection leads to tendering, the
price is determined at the end of the acquisition phase. If the contract is worth more than € 10 million, the
responsible members of the Management Board assess the potential opportunities and risks of the projects
after a legal appraisal, such as costing depth and plausibility, contract conditions and individual risks, such as
security of supply and guaranteed prices from individual subcontractors or clients’ creditworthiness. Business
unit and sub-division managers report transactions that require approval to the Management Board, which
then examines them in accordance with the internal rules of procedure and approves them.
The implementation phase is mostly managed by the local construction team. Responsibilities on our building
sites are clearly regulated. All new findings are regularly incorporated in the project calculation. The findings
from the project calculation are included in the project report. In addition to providing a preview to the end of
construction, this also shows the business unit and sub-division managers the opportunities and risks that
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have not yet been included in the project calculation. In the case of opportunities, such as for supplementary
work that has been recognized but not yet approved, only the costs are taken into account in the project
calculation. Opportunities for supplementary work are only shown in the project report.
As an additional management tool, the project monitor depicts the status and development of the project
through charts and project status flags, meaning that opportunities and risks can be identified at a glance.
Construction progress is also monitored by comparing target and actual figures to be able to counteract any
deviations as early as possible. Parallel to this, the department responsible for centralized controlling provides
ongoing commercial and technical support, involving the Central Engineering Division if required. The Management Board may involve Internal Audit if necessary. Information on project execution, on procurement and
other experiences with clients, subcontractors and suppliers is also maintained in various databases, which is
available to all sub-divisions for their day-to-day activities. Information is also available from the systematic
defect management and reporting system.
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Legal opportunities and risks
At the beginning of March 2009, an accident occurred in the area of the metro construction site for the NorthSouth tunnel on the Cologne Stadtbahn. This led to the building housing the historic city archives of the City
of Cologne and major parts of two adjacent buildings collapsing and sliding, to some extent, into a pit that
opened up beside the Waidmarkt cross-over junction on the Stadtbahn. Two people were buried under the
ruins and died before they could be rescued.
Work at the metro construction site is being carried out by a joint venture consisting of Bilfinger SE (formerly
Bilfinger Berger AG), Wayss & Freytag Ingenieurbau AG and our company. Bilfinger SE is responsible for the
technical management of the joint venture, Wayss & Freytag Ingenieurbau AG for the commercial management. Our company has a 33.3% stake in the joint venture.
The cause of the accident is still not known. The public prosecutor’s office carried out investigations with three
of its own experts – initially against persons unknown – on account of manslaughter through culpable negligence and hazardous building practice. Two independent proceedings are being held at the Cologne District
Court, one to investigate the cause of the accident and one to investigate the damage to the buildings and
archives. In December 2013, solely to interrupt the current period of limitation, the public prosecutor’s office
opened investigations against around 100 people who were more or less closely involved in the project.
However, this purely precautionary measure does not contain any statement regarding the cause of the accident. In this respect, we still have to wait for the final result of the investigations of the site of the collapse and
the expert report that has been commissioned. A viewing structure is still being constructed at present for the
investigations, which is not expected to be completed before mid-2014. The aim of the viewing structure is to
clarify whether the diaphragm wall constructed by the joint venture is defective.
We continue to assume that the company will not incur any significant losses from this project.
Additional legal opportunities and risks arise from the internal list of legal cases, which contains all cases
where the company is a plaintiff or a defendant, including independent proceedings for the taking of evidence
where the amount in dispute exceeds € 3 million.

Financial opportunities and risks
The Group’s commercial rules and regulations, from which the Group-internal reporting system and the recurrent planning process are derived, also contain responsibilities for financial risks, the majority of which are
monitored centrally by the departments responsible for accounting and controlling. All central departments in
the Group, in particular Internal Audit, are also responsible for scrutinizing all commercial transactions in the
Group for possible instances of manipulation (taking undue advantage, deception, fraud and other breaches
of the law). In addition to the risk of loss of receivables, we include liquidity, interest rate, currency and price
risks under financial risks.
The Züblin Group’s cash and cash equivalents are managed by the member of the Management Board of
Ed. Züblin AG responsible for finance in close collaboration with the department responsible for finance. With
the aim of avoiding risk, liquidity is predominantly invested in banks with top-quality external ratings. In addition to investing cash with banks, a short-term loan was extended to STRABAG SE, Villach, as part of an
“upstream” loan during the year under review, which was repaid on time. Even against the background of the
current debt crisis, sufficient liquidity for the Group is guaranteed on the basis of its year-round positive and
constantly improved liquidity and the credit lines committed by banks.
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The Züblin Group’s supply of guarantees is secured by the conclusion of a new syndicated guarantee credit
with a term of 5 years up to the end of 2015. This new syndicated guarantee credit guaranteed by
STRABAG SE with a total volume of € 2 billion is also available to other companies in the STRABAG SE
Group. The Group still has various bilateral guarantee credits worth an appreciable amount with banks and
credit insurers.
The Züblin Group supplies an appreciable percentage of its total construction services outside the euro zone
via Züblin International GmbH and Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH as well as their respective subsidiaries. As a
rule, no transaction risk is incurred in this connection because sales revenues and associated costs are
settled in the same currency in each case. If need be, where revenues and costs diverge, hedging transactions are concluded in compliance with the relevant Group guidelines. In principle, the Group only concludes derivative instruments where there is a concrete link to the hedged item with the aim of making price,
interest rate or currency risks more calculable or hedging them in relation to the specific project.
The recoverability of construction receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis in the operating units responsible for construction activity from the aspect of country risk (for orders outside the euro zone) and the actual
default risk of the respective client. In the case of private clients, receivables may be hedged through various
instruments such as payment guarantees. In the case of traditional building construction projects, the risk of
loss of receivables is frequently reduced through prepayments by the clients. Default risks are taken into
account with specific allowances.

Opportunities and risks on the procurement market
We counter the increasing demands placed on procurement (time, costs, quality) by continually improving our
procurement, information and management system. With the help of standardized guidelines as well as
defined and transparent processes for procurement, it encourages the optimal selection of the most suitable
suppliers and subcontractors. The selection process is therefore not based solely on monetary criteria but
also takes account of aspects such as quality, adherence to delivery dates as well as delivery and dependency risks. Assessments of and experience with each subcontractor and supplier as well as information on
their creditworthiness are stored in the information system for this purpose. The selection system ensures that
we are not dependent on any single subcontractor or supplier and only suppliers and subcontractors that are
suitable for the respective project are selected. Overall, this guarantees a highly effective supplier portfolio.
Through the central procurement of selected materials and subcontractor services (particularly from procurement markets with oligopolistic provider structures), we can obtain better prices by purchasing larger quantities and using master agreements. Particularly in the case of trades involving substantial technical risks, the
expertise of our specialist purchasing staff gives us a significant procurement advantage. By linking this to
local purchasing knowledge, we have created a network, which guarantees a flexible adjustment to projectspecific circumstances, allows us to identify local price and supply risks among subcontractors and suppliers
in good time and consequently allows us to intervene and take countermeasures promptly.
At present, there are no significant supply risks. The commodity prices of relevance for the construction
market remained stable in the past year. The concrete steel price remained steady, moving within a narrow
range at a virtually unchanged price level. No surges in price are expected for the next financial year either. By
working with our subcontractors, we open up further opportunities in terms of costs, adherence to deadlines
and the quality of services, even as far as our clientele is concerned.
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Opportunities and risks in the area of occupational safety/quality management
Züblin has an integrated quality management system, which includes occupational safety and environmental
protection and is drafted in accordance with DIN EN ISO 9001:2008, BS 18001, SCC: 2006 and DIN EN ISO
14001. The system is process-oriented, encompasses all the company’s transactions and regulates all operations. It was established as long ago as 1993 and is continuously adjusted and enhanced. In 2013, additional
certificates relating to occupational safety, environmental protection, energy management and compliance
were acquired or prepared for this purpose. The occupational safety management system in accordance with
BS 18.001 and the environmental management system were certified in all sub-divisions throughout Germany.
We pressed ahead with the Group-wide standardization of audit programmes, documents and archiving
schemes. We also looked at the requirements of the new standards (stakeholder approach, process approach,
risk management, documented information and leadership).
The functionality of the quality management system is scrutinized every year within the company by TÜV
Rheinland. This applies particularly to whether operational processes comply with the standard requirements
and the descriptions in the management system documentation. Account was also taken of the particular
features of entrepreneurial activities, the relevant requirements imposed by law and official regulations as well
as other higher-level documents. In the process, all hierarchical levels within the Group were questioned and
audited.

Human resources opportunities and risks
Our employees make a vital contribution to our success, to the development and growth of the company and
consequently represent our greatest competitive advantage. This opportunity is offset by the risks of losing
them, such as through staff turnover, the risk of bottlenecks such as a lack of recruits and an increasingly
aging workforce as well as adjustment risks resulting from a lack of qualifications. The system of controls used
by Human Resources provides effective support in the identification of these personnel-induced risks and
allows us to initiate measures to avoid them in good time.
The qualification, motivation, experience and long-term loyalty of our employees are key factors for Züblin’s
success. We secure quality results with a target group-oriented range of training and professional development courses for all levels – from the trainee programme to advanced technical and management courses for
professionally experienced employees – and reduce the fluctuation risk. The opportunities for a project or
expert career created in 2012, which offer interesting prospects for specialists as an alternative to the traditional career path, also increase the sense of loyalty to the company among our highly qualified employees.
At the same time, we avoid the frequently forecast lack of specialized staff and the personnel-induced risks
associated therewith by offering our talented recruits numerous opportunities to complete a dual training
programme with us or to contact us during their degree courses (internships, help with theses, work as a
student assistant) and consequently prepare in the best possible manner for starting work. At secondary
schools, we provide information as part of career advice on the attractive training and employment opportunities in the construction industry and thus prepare the field to secure our recruits. Overall, we are currently
boosting the employer brand through an employer branding offensive, which will increase awareness and
consequently encourage a throng of qualified applicants.
We counter the risk of losing staff through illness through numerous occupational safety measures and a large
number of measures to promote health, which will increase in significance and scope as a result of the imminent introduction of a Group-wide corporate health management system.
From today’s viewpoint, there are no personnel risks which might jeopardize the Group’s existence.
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Overall picture of the Group’s opportunity and risk situation
To recap, the largest risks result from the Group's construction contracts. Ed. Züblin AG's risk management
system guarantees that entrepreneurial opportunities and risks can be identified in good time and that the
Group is in a position to seize opportunities and to counter risks actively and effectively.
Our review of the present risk situation showed that there were no risks threatening the continued existence of
the company during the period under review and there were no identifiable risks that posed a threat to its
continued existence in future either.

REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH § 312 OF THE GERMAN STOCK
CORPORATION LAW (AKTG)
The report prepared in accordance with § 312 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) gave an account
of Ed. Züblin AG’s relations with affiliated companies in 2013.
The 2013 report closes with the statement that, in the case of every legal transaction in this regard with
Ed. Züblin AG, performance and counterperformance were commensurate with the circumstances known at
the time of the legal transaction.
It is further stated that according to the circumstances known at the time the decision was taken, the company was not prejudiced by the actions taken or omitted.
The report was presented to the auditors together with the 2013 annual financial statements and the 2013
Group management report and was certified by them.

Future-related comments
This annual report contains comments which relate to the future development of Ed. Züblin AG and of the
Züblin Group and economic and political developments. The comments represent estimates, which we have
reached, after fundamental scrutiny, on the basis of the information available to us at the time the annual
report went to press. However, since they are dependent on factors which are outside our influence, actual
developments may differ from our forecasts.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Sales revenues
Change in inventories
Capitalized services
Other operating income
Cost of materials and purchased services
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Results from equity participations
Other results from participations
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA)
Amortization/depreciation of intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)
Interest and other financial income
Interest and other financial expenses
Interest
Earnings before taxes
Taxes on income
Earnings after taxes
of which earnings attributable to non-controlling shareholders
of which earnings due to the parent company’s shareholders
(consolidated earnings)

Notes
(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(8)
(9)
(9)

(10)

2013
T€
3,026,398
– 2,485
848
32,658
– 2,134,775
– 597,298
– 157,194
– 8,665
5,582

2012
T€
2,799,666
– 1,417
787
50,981
– 1,984,314
– 559,454
– 153,478
2,275
2,379

165,069

157,425

– 57,277
107,792
19,831
– 7,573
12,258
120,050
– 33,102
86,948
817

– 42,711
114,714
13,944
– 9,601
4,343
119,057
– 32,304
86,753
250

86,131

86,503

2013
T€
86,948
– 3,487
– 37

2012
T€
86,753
2,338
– 10

– 3,524

2,328

– 3,274
976

– 17,044
5,078

– 2,298
81,126
780

– 11,966
77,115
239

80,346

76,876

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Notes
Earnings after taxes
Difference from currency translation
Difference from currency translation (minority interests)
Amount of items which are subsequently recycled
into the income statement
Actuarial gains/losses from defined pension commitments
and similar obligations
Deferred taxes on changes in equity with no impact on income
Amount of items which are not subsequently recycled
into the income statement
Overall result
of which earnings attributable to non-controlling shareholders
of which earnings due to the parent company’s shareholders
(consolidated earnings)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Notes

31/12/2013
T€

31/12/2012
T€

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Shares in equity participations
Other financial assets
Trade receivables
Receivables from taxes on income
Other financial receivables and assets
Deferred tax assets

(11)
(11)
(12)
(12)
(15)
(15)
(15)
(13)

44,684
285,970
1,514
10,682
176
3,255
2,484
6,072
354,837

45,819
274,108
4,930
11,031
304
9,464
15,856
3,467
364,979

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Non-financial assets
Receivables from taxes on income
Other financial receivables and assets
Cash and cash equivalents

(14)
(15)
(15)
(15)
(15)
(16)

71,574
508,277
6,642
8,193
90,080
694,590
1,379,356
1,734,193

79,261
477,077
10,084
7,246
58,418
623,860
1,255,946
1,620,925

31/12/2013
T€

31/12/2012
T€

20,452
445,763
466,215
1,886
468,101

20,452
366,238
386,690
1,326
388,016

LIABILITIES
Notes
Equity
Capital stock
Reserves

(17)
(17)

Minority interests

(17)

Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Payables
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

(18)
(19)
(19)
(19)
(13)

184,880
14,054
1,143
4
34,818
234,899

185,149
15,181
1,385
7
33,316
235,038

Current liabilities
Provisions
Payables
Trade payables
Non-financial liabilities
Payables from taxes on income
Other financial liabilities

(18)
(19)
(19)
(19)
(19)
(19)

122,770
785
745,494
39,608
40,763
81,773
1,031,193
1,734,193

109,768
25,300
714,951
40,906
32,302
74,644
997,871
1,620,925

With regard to the changes in the reporting of receivables and payables from taxes on income and provisions
for taxes, please refer to the relevant explanations in [15], [18] and [19] in the notes.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2013
T€
86,948
– 147
3,233

2012
T€
86,753
5,179
336

10,400
58,505
– 3,507
– 5,923
149,509

– 11,179
44,052
– 6,229
– 2,274
116,638

10,132

– 17,536

– 36,449

– 73,260

– 23,619
8,242

– 16,885
– 4,442

33,034

82,227

8,664
5,097
12,172
166,782

– 5,591
– 1,558
6,312
85,905

Acquisition of financial assets
Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Disbursements resulting from the acquisition of consolidated companies
Cash inflows from the sale of consolidated companies
Cash inflows from the disposal of assets
Cash flow from investment activities

– 924
– 74,615
– 6,460
0
11,919
– 70,080

– 3,166
– 93,018
– 18,139
21,168
5,003
– 88,152

Payment of lease liabilities
Liabilities to banks
Dividend distributions
Cash flow from financing activities

– 2,476
– 21,189
– 820
– 24,485

– 2,468
16,302
– 820
13,014

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Change in cash and cash equivalents
arising from changes in the consolidated group
Change in cash and cash equivalents arising from currency differences
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

72,217
623,860

10,767
610,872

– 183
– 1,304
694,590

633
1,588
623,860

Notes
Earnings after taxes
Deferred taxes
Non-cash income from equity participations
Other non-cash expenses and income as well as results from
deconsolidations
Write-downs/write-ups
Changes in non-current provisions
Profit from the sale/disposal of assets
Cash flow from the result
Changes in items:
Inventories
Receivables from construction contracts, trade receivables
incl. joint ventures
Group receivables and receivables from companies
in which participations are held
Other assets
Payables from construction contracts, trade payables
incl. joint ventures
Group payables and payables to companies
in which participations are held
Other liabilities
Current provisions
Cash flow from operating activities
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 31/12/2011

Capital Retained
stock earnings
T€
T€

Changes in equity with
no impact on income
Actuarial
Foreign
Other
gains/
currency
reserves
losses
reserves
T€
T€
T€

20,452

246,941

49,686

Earnings after taxes
Difference from currency
translation
Change in actuarial gains/losses
Deferred taxes on changes in
equity with no impact on income
Overall result

0

0

20,452

312,969

86,503

250

86,753

2,338
– 17,044

– 11

– 17,044

2,327
– 17,044

5,079

5,079

77,115

43,475 – 43,475

0

– 1,248

– 1,248

– 820

– 820

0

– 820

386,690

1,326

388,016

86,131

817

86,948

– 3,487
– 3,274

– 37

– 3,274

– 3,524
– 3,274

976

976

289,149

– 11,965

– 15,925

2,338

– 147

86,131
– 3,487

0

Other changes

0

86,131

– 2,298

– 3,487

80,346

976
780

81,126

37,762 – 37,762

0

– 820

– 820

– 221

– 1,041

466,216

1,885

468,101

Dividend distribution
20,452

5,079
239

Earnings after taxes
Difference from currency
translation
Change in actuarial gains/losses
Deferred taxes on changes in
equity with no impact on income

As at 31/12/2013

2,335

76,876

93,161

86,503

Total
equity
T€

310,634

2,338

Dividend distribution

Overall result

– 2,485

86,503

Other changes

As at 31/12/2012

– 3,960

Group Minority
equity interests
T€
T€

130,923

336,698

– 18,223

– 3,634

0
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Cost
31/12 Change in
Previous consolid. Currency
year companies differences
T€
T€
T€
2013
Intangible assets
Concessions, industrial
property rights and
similar rights and values
Goodwill
– of which from
capital consolidation
Property, plant
and equipment
Land, leasehold rights and
buildings, including buildings
on third-party land
Plant and machinery
Other equipment, operating
and office equipment
Advance payments
and work in progress

2012
Intangible assets
Concessions, industrial
property rights and
similar rights and values
Goodwill
– of which from
capital consolidation
Property, plant
and equipment
Land, leasehold rights and
buildings, including buildings
on third-party land
Plant and machinery
Other equipment, operating
and office equipment
Advance payments
and work in progress
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5,810
51,152

Additions
T€

Disposals
T€

Transfers
T€

31/12
Reporting
year
T€

1,118

– 84
– 10

310
1,836

362
0

0
0

6,792
52,978

(30,904)
56,962

1,118

– 94

(1,836)
2,146

362

0

(32,740)
59,770

167,314
258,980

1,203
6,557

– 584
– 8,315

9,203
41,266

7,477
21,280

706
829

170,365
278,037

115,692

572

– 785

19,694

10,051

148

125,270

2,461
544,447

4
8,336

– 33
– 9,717

4,142
74,305

0
38,808

– 1,683
0

4,891
578,563

4,438
42,218

107
0

28
12

1,338
8,922

257
0

156
0

5,810
51,152

(21,982)
46,656

107

40

(8,922)
10,260

257

156

(30,904)
56,962

138,625
203,886

6,893
8,051

198
2,129

16,718
53,403

783
8,801

5,663
312

167,314
258,980

94,938

7,335

153

21,109

7,843

0

115,692

6,117
443,566

0
22,279

10
2,490

2,465
93,695

0
17,427

– 6,131
– 156

2,461
544,447
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Cumulative depreciation/amortization

Carrying amounts
31/12
31/12
Reporting
Previous
year
year
T€
T€

31/12
Previous
year
T€

Change in
consolid.
companies
T€

Currency
differences
T€

Additions
T€

Disposals
T€

Transfers
T€

31/12
Reporting
year
T€

3,812
7,331

899
0

– 66
–9

979
2,500

360

0
0

5,264
9,822

1,528
43,156

1,998
43,821

(3,500)
11,143

899

– 75

(2,500)
3,479

360

0

(6,000)
15,086

(26,740)
44,684

(27,404)
45,819

39,425
163,650

663
5,026

– 238
– 5,886

6,050
32,778

2,786
18,813

– 22
22

43,092
176,777

127,273
101,260

127,889
95,330

67,264

516

– 574

14,970

9,452

0

72,724

52,546

48,428

0
270,339

0
6,205

0
– 6,698

0
53,798

0
31,051

0
0

0
292,593

4,891
285,970

2,461
274,108

3,776
7,319

– 51
0

15
12

329
0

257
0

0
0

3,812
7,331

1,998
43,821

662
34,899

(3,500)
11,095

– 51

27

329

257

0

(3,500)
11,143

(27,404)
45,819

(18,482)
35,561

32,761
140,297

1,623
4,957

58
1,596

5,434
24,140

451
7,340

0
0

39,425
163,650

127,889
95,330

105,864
63,589

56,561

4,969

121

12,808

7,195

0

67,264

48,428

38,377

0
229,619

0
11,549

0
1,775

0
42,382

0
14,986

0
0

0
270,339

2,461
274,108

6,117
213,947
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SHAREHOLDINGS PURSUANT TO § 313 PARA. 2 OF THE
GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE (HGB)
Share
%
Fully consolidated affiliated companies
Germany
Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart
Blees-Kölling-Bau GmbH, Cologne1)
DYWIDAG Bau GmbH, Munich1)
Eberhard Pöhner Unternehmen für Hoch- und Tiefbau GmbH, Bayreuth1)
ECS European Construction Services GmbH, Mörfelden-Walldorf 1)
Hermann Kirchner Hoch- und Ingenieurbau GmbH, Bad Hersfeld1)
Josef Riepl Unternehmen für Ingenieur- und Hochbau GmbH,
Regensburg1)
MERK Timber GmbH, Aichach1)
NE Sander Eisenbau GmbH, Sande1)
NE Sander Immobilien GmbH, Sande1)
REPASS-SANIERUNGSTECHNIK GMBH Korrosionsschutz und
Betoninstandsetzung, Munderkingen1)
SF - Ausbau GmbH, Freiberg1)
Stephan Holzbau GmbH, Gaildorf1)
Torkret GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Wolfer & Goebel Bau GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Xaver Bachner GmbH, Straubing1)
Z-Bau GmbH, Magdeburg1)
Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH, Cologne 1)
Züblin Gebäudetechnik GmbH, Erlangen1)
Züblin International GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Züblin Projektentwicklung GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Züblin Stahlbau GmbH, Hosena1)
Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH, Stuttgart1)
Züblin Wasserbau GmbH, Berlin1)
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100
100
100
100
100

(N)

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
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Share
%
Fully consolidated affiliated companies
Abroad
N.V. STRABAG Belgium S.A., Antwerp/Belgium
Shanghai Changjiang-Züblin Construction & Engineering Co. Ltd., Shanghai/China
STRABAG Qatar W.L.L., Doha/Qatar3)
Züblin A/S, Trige/Denmark
Züblin Ground and Civil Engineering LLC, Dubai/UAE3)
Züblin Holding GesmbH, Vienna/Austria
Züblin Inc., Saint John/Canada
Züblin International GmbH Chile SpA, Santiago/Chile
Züblin Kft, Budapest/Hungary
Züblin Nederland B.V., Vlaardingen/Netherlands
Züblin Romania S.R.L., Bucharest/Romania
Züblin Scandinavia AB, Stockholm/Sweden
Züblin Sp. z o.o., Poznan/Poland
Züblin Spezialtiefbau Ges.m.b.H., Vienna/Austria
Zucotec – Sociedade de Construções, Lda, Lisbon/Portugal

100
75
49
100
49
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013 y 49

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Share
%
Non-consolidated affiliated companies of minor significance
Germany
2. Züblin Vorrats GmbH, Stuttgart
DIMMOPLAN Verwaltungs GmbH, Stuttgart
EURO SERVICES Catering & Cleaning GmbH, Mörfelden-Walldorf
FDZ Grundstücksverwaltung GmbH & Co. Objekt Stuttgart-Möhringen KG, Mainz
Freo Projektentwicklung Berlin GmbH, Berlin
Harald Zweig Bautenschutz G.m.b.H., Essen
Industrielles Bauen, Betreuungsgesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Stuttgart
Kieswerk Diersheim GmbH, Rheinau
Projektgesellschaft Willinkspark GmbH, Cologne2)
Züblin Services GmbH, Stuttgart

100
100
100
94
50.1
100
100
60
100
100

Share
%
Non-consolidated affiliated companies of minor significance
Abroad
Asesorías de Ingeniería y Construcciones Ltda., Santiago/Chile
Baytürk Grup Insaat Ithalat, Ihracat ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi, Istanbul/Turkey
Beijing Züblin Equipment Production Co. Ltd., Beijing/China
BSS Tunnel- & Montanbau GmbH i.L., Berne/Switzerland
Demirtürk Uluslararasi Insaat, Ithalat, Ihracat ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi, Istanbul/Turkey
Empresa Constructora, Züblin Peru S.A.C., Lima/Peru
EUROTEC ANGOLA, LDA, Luanda/Angola
Mister Recrutamento Lda., Lisbon/Portugal
OOO Züblin Russia, Ufa/Russia
OOO Züblin, Moscow/Russia
POLTEC Sp. z o.o., Wroczlaw/Poland
Z-Design EOOD, Sofia/Bulgaria
Züblin AS, Oslo/Norway
Züblin Australia Pty Ltd., Perth/Australia
Züblin Bulgaria EOOD, Sofia/Bulgaria
Züblin Engineering Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Shanghai/China
Züblin Holding Thailand Co. Ltd., Bangkok/Thailand3)
Züblin Hrvatska d.o.o., Zagreb/Croatia
Züblin International Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur/Malaysia
Züblin Ireland Limited, Dublin/Ireland
Züblin Thailand Co. Ltd., Bangkok/Thailand
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100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
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100
100
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Share
%
Associated companies, equity participations
Germany
BMTI – Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne
BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne
Associated companies, equity participations
Abroad
Züblin International Qatar L.L.C., Doha/Qatar

(L)

40
50

49

Share
%
Associated companies of minor significance
Germany
BS-Baugeräte-Service GmbH & Co. KG i. I., Augsburg
BS-Baugeräte-Service-Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH i. I., Augsburg
Büro-Center Ruppmannstraße GmbH, Stuttgart
ITC Engineering GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart
Milet Ditzingen Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Heidelberg
Milet Ditzingen Objektgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Heidelberg
PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart
stahl + verbundbau gesellschaft für industrielles bauen m.b.H., Dreieich
Wohnbau Tafelgelände Beteiligungs-GmbH, Munich
Wohnbau Tafelgelände GmbH & Co. KG, Munich

25
25
50
50
49
49
48
30
25
25

Associated companies of minor significance
Abroad
Arena Development N.V., Hasselt/Belgium
ASG Invest N.V., Genk/Belgium
Betobeja Empreendimentos Imobiliarios, Lda, Lisbon/Portugal
Industrial Engineering and Contracting Co. S.A.R.L. i. L., Beirut/Lebanon
Ontwikkelingscombinatie Maasmechelen N.V., Antwerp/Belgium
Philman Holdings Company, Inc. Metro, Manila/Philippines
Tierra Chuquicamata SpA, Santiago/Chile

50
25
26
50
50
20
20

(N) = Name change
(L) = Change of legal form
(R) = Reclassification
1)

§ 264 Para. 3 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) is invoked for the company.

2)

Lack of controlling influence resulting from the contractual structure

3)

Controlling influence resulting from the contractual structure

Some of the percentages in the shareholdings have been rounded.
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GENERAL REMARKS
Ed. Züblin AG, which is based in Stuttgart, is a German construction group with subsidiaries in Germany and
abroad. The Group’s core business segments are:
- Turnkey Construction
- Construction Engineering
- Plants and Specialist Areas
In implementation of § 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the consolidated financial statements of
Ed. Züblin AG as at 31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), including the Interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee.
Applied are exclusively those IASB Standards and Interpretations accepted by the European Commission by
the balance sheet date and published accordingly in the Official Journal of the European Union. In addition,
further disclosure requirements of § 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) are met.
These consolidated financial statements are included in the consolidated financial statements of STRABAG
SE, Villach/Austria.
In addition to the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and the balance sheet, a cash
flow statement is compiled in accordance with IAS 7 and a statement of changes in equity is shown (IAS 1).
For better clarity of presentation, various items of the balance sheet and the consolidated income statement
have been combined. These items are reported and explained separately in the Notes. The consolidated
income statement is drawn up in accordance with the total cost format.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in € thousands (T €), which can result in rounding differences.
The Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart, released these consolidated financial statements for
publication on 9 April 2014. They will be approved in the meeting of the Supervisory Board on 24 April 2014.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The IASB has adopted the following changes to existing IFRSs and adopted some new IFRSs and IFRICs,
which have already been endorsed by the EU Commission and whose application has consequently been
mandatory since 1 January 2013:
Applicable to financial years
commencing on or after
the date specified
in accordance with
IASB
EU law
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards:
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards:
Government Loans
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes:
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
Revision of IAS 19 Employee Benefits
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
IFRS Annual Improvements 2009–2011

1/1/2013

1/1/2013

1/1/2013

1/1/2013

1/1/2013
1/1/2013

1/1/2013
1/1/2013

1/7/2012

1/7/2012

1/1/2012
1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013

1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013

IFRS 7: to simplify the comparison of companies which prepare IFRS financial statements and companies
whose financial statements are prepared in accordance with US-GAAP, the disclosures required in the notes
were expanded considerably in the event of there being any offsetting agreements. The amendments to IFRS
7 also provide for comprehensive disclosures on those rights of set-off, which do not lead to offsetting under
IFRS. There are no offsetting agreements within the meaning of this standard, meaning that it had no effect on
the financial statements.
IFRS 13: the standard defines the concept of fair value, sets out guidelines for determining fair value and
regulates the requisite disclosures in the notes on the calculation of fair value. The provisions relate not only to
financial instruments but also to the calculation of fair values in accordance with other IAS. First-time adoption
had no significant impact in the Züblin Group.
IAS 1 is amended to the effect that components of other comprehensive income are to be presented in such
a way that the issue of whether the expenses and income recognized therein will be recycled into the income
statement at a later date or whether these will never be recycled into the income statement is discernible. The
guidelines were implemented accordingly in the statement of comprehensive income.
IAS 12 “Recovery of Underlying Assets” – the amendment offers a solution for the valuation of deferred taxes
on investment properties which are valued at fair value in accordance with IAS 40 and on revalued assets that
are not subject to scheduled depreciation/amortization. There are no substantial holdings of investment
property in the Züblin Group, meaning that the amendment did not result in any required adjustments.
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IAS 19: in addition to clarifications, the revised version also contains amendments. For instance, the corridor
method, namely the option of recognizing actuarial gains and losses from defined benefit obligations spread
over several years, is abolished. The same interest rate must be used for calculating the anticipated return on
plan assets as for discounting the defined benefit obligation. The consequence of this is that the total income
from plan assets is no longer recognized in the income statement. The revised IAS 19 also provides for
extended disclosure obligations on defined benefit plans and for changes in the accounting of postemployment benefits. Since the Züblin Group immediately recognized actuarial gains and losses from definedbenefit obligations immediately without any effect on income in the past, this had no impact on the net assets,
financial position and profit situation. Plan assets consist of reinsurance policies and are not substantial,
meaning that the changes to the way in which they are valued had no impact. Appropriate account was taken
of the expansion in disclosure obligations in the notes.
IFRIC 20: this interpretation relates to the stripping costs incurred in the production phase of a surface mine.
It defines when and how a benefit, which may arise from an activity of this kind, must be measured and accounted for. This regulation has no impact on the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG.
IFRS Annual Improvements 2009–2011: amendments to individual standards as part of the IASB’s annual
improvement process. These did not have any material impact on the presentation of the net assets, financial
position and profit situation of the Züblin Group.
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FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The IASB and IFRIC have adopted additional standards and interpretations whose application is not yet
mandatory in the 2013 financial year or have not yet been endorsed by the EU Commission. These are the
following standards and interpretations:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 Investments in Associates
IAS 32 Presentation of Financial Instruments: Offsetting rules
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets:
Disclosures on the Recoverable Amount
IAS 39 Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement: Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IFRIC 21 Levies
Transitional Guidelines – Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
Investment Entities – Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
IFRS Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012
IFRS Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013
1)

Applicable to financial years
commencing on or after
the date specified
in accordance with
IASB
EU law
1)
1/1/2018
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1)
1/1/2016
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2014
1/1/2014
1/1/2014

1/1/2014

1/1/2014
1/1/2014
1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/7/2014
1/7/2014

1/1/2014
1)

1/1/2014
1/1/2014
1)
1)

Endorsement procedure is still ongoing

With the exception of IFRS 11 in conjunction with IFRS 12 and IAS 28, the adoption of the new standards and
interpretations had only a minor impact on the consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 9 pursues a new approach for the classification and measurement of financial assets and distinguishes
between only two measurement categories (measurement at fair value or at amortised cost), based on the
business model of the entity or on the characteristic features of the contractual cash flows of the respective
financial asset. Measurement with respect to impairment must be effected in accordance with a standard
method.
IFRS 10 and IAS 27: IFRS 10 replaces the provisions of the previous IAS 27 on consolidated accounting and
contains questions that were previously regulated in SIC-12 “Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities”. IFRS
10 amends the definition of the term “control” to the effect that the same criteria are now applied to all companies to establish a control relationship. As a result, there will be more comprehensive regulations on the definition of the group of consolidated companies in future than was previously the case in accordance with IAS
27. The fundamental consolidation requirements, such as the treatment of shares of non-controlling entities or
the use of uniform reporting methods will also be dealt with, as was previously the case in IAS 27. The revised
IAS 27 only relates to separate financial statements.
IFRS 11 and IAS 28 regulate circumstances in which a company exercises joint control over a joint venture or
a joint operation and replace the previous regulations in IAS 31 and in SIC-13. The previous option of proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled companies (joint ventures) is abolished. IAS 28 was extended to
include accounting for joint ventures in accordance with the equity method. As a result of the introduction of
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IFRS 11, the expert committee (HFA) of the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer e.V. (IDW) has decided to reclassify
the typical German construction joint venture in the form of a company incorporated under the German Civil
Code (BGB) as a joint venture. Züblin is considering adopting the HFA’s recommendation. In addition to
changes to reporting in the income statement, the financial information in the notes would have to be expanded to include the disclosures on construction joint ventures in conjunction with IFRS 12. The reclassification would have no effect on the profit situation.
IFRS 12: this new standard combines all disclosure obligations for subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
as well as for unconsolidated structured entities. It replaces the corresponding regulations in standards IAS 27,
IAS 28 and IAS 31.
IAS 32 contains amendments clarifying the preconditions under which financial instruments may be netted in
the balance sheet.
IAS 36 was amended as a consequence of the introduction of IFRS 13 to the effect that the recoverable
amount of those cash generating units (or groups of units), to which substantial goodwill or substantial
intangible assets with an indeterminate useful life are assigned, must be disclosed. New disclosure obligations
were also introduced in the event of impairments or reinstatements of the original value of assets or cash
generating units.
IAS 39 (amended version) contains provisions to facilitate the novation of over-the-counter derivatives, whereby hedge accounting can continue if the novation of a hedging instrument with a central counterparty fulfils
certain criteria.
IFRIC 21 provides guidance on when to recognize provisions for levies accounted for in accordance with IAS
37, where the timing and amount of the levy is uncertain, and how to account for matching liabilities, i.e. in
those cases where both the timing and the amount of the payment are known. However, taxes on income
within the meaning of IAS 12 are excluded from the area of application. Adoption of the interpretation can lead
to an obligation to pay a levy being recognized at a different date from the one previously reported, namely if
the obligation to pay only arises when certain circumstances apply at a certain time.
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Transitional Guidelines: relate primarily to first-time
application of IFRS 10 and additional disclosures in accordance with IFRS 12.
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities: introduce an exemption from the duty
to consolidate subsidiaries in accordance with IFRS 10 for entities that fulfil the definition of an investment
entity.
Premature application of the new standards and interpretations is not planned.

CONSOLIDATION
The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidation, located in Germany and abroad,
have been prepared according to standardized accounting and valuation methods. The annual financial statements of the consolidated companies in Germany and abroad have been correspondingly adapted.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Companies where the Group determines the financial and commercial policy constitute subsidiaries. This
control usually results from having a share of the voting rights of more than 50%. However, when assessing
whether control exists, potential voting rights, which can currently be exercised or converted, must also be
included. Control may also exist even though the Group holds less than 50% of the voting rights if the size of
the Group’s voting rights in relation to the number and distribution of all other shareholders’ voting rights leads
to the fact that the Group controls the commercial and financial policy (de facto control).
A subsidiary is included in the consolidated financial statements on the date on which the parent company
obtains control. Conversely, the company is deconsolidated when control is lost.
Capital consolidation is carried out in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 using the purchase method.
The purchase cost for the subsidiary equals the sum of the fair values of the assets given, of the equity instruments issued and the debts assumed. Contingent purchase price components are also included at their fair
value on the date of first-time consolidation. Subsequent deviations from this figure are recognized through
profit or loss. Transaction costs are also recognized through profit or loss immediately.
Shares of non-controlling shareholders are recognized at their proportionate share of the net assets of the
company acquired (partial goodwill method). The option of recognizing shares of non-controlling shareholders
at fair value was not used.
In a step acquisition, the existing share of the company’s equity is revalued at the fair value applicable at the
date of acquisition. The profit or loss resulting therefrom must be recognized in the income statement.
All the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities, valued at fair value, must be balanced against the acquisition costs, contingent considerations, existing shares of equity and shares of non-controlling shareholders.
Any remaining positive difference is reported as goodwill. Following further scrutiny, negative differences from
the capital consolidation are immediately recognized through the income statement. Goodwill is subjected to
an impairment test at least once a year in accordance with IAS 36.
In the 2013 financial year, total goodwill from capital consolidation of T € 1,836 (previous year: T € 1,533) was
capitalized. Impairments of T € 2,500 were recognized.
Subsidiaries that are not consolidated due to insignificance are stated at cost of purchase or fair value in
accordance with IAS 39 if this value can be reliably determined.

Transactions with non-controlling shares where control is not lost
Differences from the acquisition or sale of shares in affiliated companies where control is not acquired or lost
are recognized entirely in equity with no effect on income.
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Sale of subsidiaries
When control over a subsidiary is lost, any remaining share is revalued at fair value. The difference between
this figure and the existing carrying amounts is recognized as profit or loss. An associate, a joint agreement or
a financial asset is valued at this fair value when recognized for the first time. All amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are accounted for as if the assets and liabilities of the company in
question had been sold directly.

Associated companies
Companies where the Group exercises a decisive influence constitute associated companies. As a rule, this is
the case with a share of the voting rights of between 20% and 50%. Shares in associated companies are
accounted for using the equity method: when reported for the first time, the shares acquired are initially recognized at cost of purchase. Any differences that arise are treated in line with the principles of full consolidation.
In subsequent years, the carrying amount of the shares will rise or fall in line with the pro rata profit or loss and
other comprehensive income generated by the participation. Dividend distributions will reduce the carrying
amount of the shares. As soon as the pro rata losses of the Group match or exceed the share in the associated company, no further losses are to be recognized unless the Group is liable for the losses of the associated company.
At each balance sheet date, the Group checks whether there are indications of any impairment in the shares
in the associated company. If there are indications, the difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount must be recorded in the income statement as an impairment charge.
There was no first-time at-equity valuation in the reporting year.
Associated companies which are not recognized at equity for reasons of materiality are recognized at cost of
purchase or at fair value in accordance with IAS 39 if this figure can be reliably determined.

Jointly controlled companies
Jointly controlled companies are those where the Group exercises joint control together with a third company.
Joint control exists if the determination of the commercial and financial policy requires the unanimous consent
of all parties involved in the joint control. At Züblin, jointly controlled companies are accounted for in
accordance with the equity method.
Jointly controlled companies which are not recognized at equity for reasons of materiality are recognized at
cost of purchase or at fair value in accordance with IAS 39 if this figure can be reliably determined.

Participations
The other participations are recognized at cost of purchase or at fair value in accordance with IAS 39 if this
figure can be reliably determined.
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CONSOLIDATIONS
Within the framework of debt consolidation, trade receivables, loans and other receivables are balanced
against the corresponding liabilities and provisions between subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial
statements.
Revenue and expenses from supplies and services within the Group are eliminated. Interim results from
supplies and services transactions within the Group are cancelled in so far as they are significant.
Unrealized gains from transactions between Group companies and associated companies are eliminated in
line with the Group’s share in the associated company.
Non-controlling shares in the equity and results of companies controlled by the parent company are presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements.
For consolidations, deferred taxes have been recognized as appropriate.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013 embrace, in addition to Ed. Züblin AG, all
significant German and foreign subsidiaries in which Ed. Züblin AG exercises control, directly or indirectly, and
the contractual structure does not exclude a controlling influence. Significant associated companies and jointly
controlled companies are reported in the balance sheet using the equity method (equity participations).
Companies that are insignificant, even in their totality, for conveying a picture of the Group’s net assets, financial position and profit situation corresponding to the actual conditions are not consolidated. The decision on
inclusion is based on quantitative and qualitative considerations.
The companies and equity participations within the scope of the 2013 consolidated financial statements are
shown in the list of shareholdings.
The financial year of all consolidated and associated companies is the calendar year.
In the 2013 financial year, the consolidated Group recorded the following change:

As at 31/12/2012
First-time consolidation during the reporting year
Merged or accrued in the reporting year
Excluded from consolidation during the reporting year
As at 31/12/2013
of which companies abroad

Full
consolidation
42
1
–2
–1
40
15

Equity
method
3
0
0
0
3
1
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Additions to consolidated companies
By virtue of the agreement dated 11 March 2013, the subsidiary Züblin Bau GmbH, Stuttgart, acquired 100%
of the shares in Metsä Wood Merk GmbH, Aichach, with economic effect from 1 January 2013. The acquisition was approved by the competition authorities on 27 March 2013, which resulted in 22 April 2013 as the
contractually agreed closing. The final purchase price amounted to € 6.85 million. The company was merged
with Züblin Bau GmbH by virtue of the contract dated 5 August 2013. Züblin Bau GmbH was subsequently
renamed MERK Timber GmbH. The acquisition supplements the Züblin Group’s existing activities in timber
construction engineering.
The first-time consolidation of Metsä Wood Merk GmbH contributed € 21 million to consolidated sales
revenues and € – 0.4 million to consolidated earnings in 2013. If the company had been consolidated for the
first time as at 1 January 2013, it would have contributed € 27 million to consolidated sales revenues and
ŞŎ 1.3 million to earnings. The purchase price for the company is to be assigned to the assets and liabilities
as follows; given their minor significance, a breakdown of the receivables acquired has not been provided.
Carrying
Carrying
amount, pre- amount, postacquisition
acquisition
T€
T€
Acquired assets and liabilities
Goodwill
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Purchase price
Net liquidity absorbed
Net outflow from the acquisition

0
2,351
5,617
– 545
– 2,406

1,836
2,351
5,617
– 545
– 2,406
6,853
– 393
6,460

Reductions in consolidated companies
The merger of SBR Verwaltungs-GmbH, Kehl, with Dywidag Bau GmbH, Munich, on 1 January 2013 became
effective when it was recorded in the Commercial Register on 8 August 2013. Given its minor importance,
Züblin International Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur/Malaysia, has been removed from the consolidated
companies.

Acquisitions after the closing date
By virtue of the agreement dated 21 March 2014, Ed. Züblin AG acquired branches of activity and equipment
owned by the “Ports and Coast” segment of STRABAG Wasserbau (hydraulic engineering), Ludwig Voss
GmbH and STRABAG AG. This will allow further expansion of the Construction Engineering segment. The
purchase price amounts to € 18.3 million and is mainly attributable to the equipment acquired. A provisional
purchase price allocation has not been carried out because of the proximity of the acquisition to the preparation date.

60 y ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013

FOREWORD
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The items contained in the financial statements of each Group company are valued on the basis of the currency which equates to the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (functional currency). The functional currency of the subsidiaries is the respective national currency for all companies. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euros, which is Züblin’s reporting currency.
Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the rate on the date of the transaction. On the closing date, monetary items are converted at the rate on this date; non-monetary items are
translated at the rate on the date of the transaction. Translation differences are recognized through profit or
loss.
The assets and liabilities of Group companies where the functional currency is not the euro are translated from
the respective national currency into euros at the average exchange rate on the closing date. The income
statements of foreign Group companies where the functional currency is not the euro are, like the earnings for
the year, translated at the average exchange rate during the reporting period. The differences which result
from the application of both rates are recognized without any effect on income.
Material currencies are listed at their rates on the balance sheet date and their average rates under [22]
Financial instruments.
Currency differences recorded directly in equity without effect on income amount to T € – 3,487 (previous year:
T € 2,338) and are shown in the adjustment item for foreign currency differences. This item includes currency
differences amounting to T € – 4,301 (previous year: T € 2,223) resulting from the consolidation of capital. In
the reporting year, T € 1,389 (previous year: T € 157) were reclassified from the cumulative foreign currency
differences recorded in reserves without affecting income into the income statement because of the sale of a
subsidiary. Currency translation differences between the balance sheet rate within the balance sheet and the
average rate within the income statement are netted off in equity. Currency differences amounting to
7ŞŎ4,657 (previous year: T € – 1,310) were recognized with effect on income.

ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION METHODS
Intangible assets
Acquired intangible assets are recognized at their cost of purchase less impairments and scheduled depreciation/amortization, if applicable.
Development costs for any intangible assets produced in-house are capitalized if the Group can demonstrate
that completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible, meaning that it will be available for use internally
or for sale, and that it intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it. Evidence must also be provided that the asset will generate a future economic benefit, resources are available to complete the asset and
that the expenses attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably determined. The cost of
manufacture for these assets encompasses all costs directly attributable to the production process and production-related overheads. Borrowing costs are capitalized for material qualified assets. Research expenses
which do not fulfil these criteria are recognized as expenditure in the period in which they accrue. Costs
already recognized as expenditure are not capitalized in a subsequent period.
Intangible assets with a determined useful life are subsequently valued at their cost of purchase or manufacture less cumulative amortization and impairments. There are no intangible assets with an undetermined
useful life in the Group.

ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013 y 61

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The straight-line amortization of intangible assets is based on the following useful lives:
Useful life in years
Intangible assets
Software
Patents, licences

3
3

–
–

5
5

Goodwill
Goodwill from a business combination is valued at cost of purchase on first-time recognition. This is the result
of the consideration transferred exceeding the identifiable assets and assumed liabilities. Following first-time
recognition, goodwill is valued at cost of purchase less cumulative impairments. It is not subject to scheduled
amortization but is tested at least once a year for impairment in accordance with the rules in IAS 36. For the
purposes of the impairment test, the goodwill is assigned to one or more of the Group’s cash generating units,
which are supposed to benefit from the synergy effects of the merger. The intrinsic value of goodwill is
determined by comparing the carrying amount of the relevant cash generating unit or units and the
recoverable amount. A subsequent reinstatement of the original value on the basis of the reasons for the
impairment ceasing to exist is not envisaged for goodwill.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the cost of purchase or manufacture when recognized for the
first time. The cost model is used for subsequent valuation at Züblin, meaning that they are valued at cost of
purchase or manufacture less cumulative scheduled depreciation and impairments. If the reasons for a
previously recognized impairment no longer apply, these assets are written up through the income statement,
however the write-up may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been produced if impairments
had not been recognized in earlier periods.
Subsequent costs of purchase or manufacture are capitalized if it is likely that a future economic benefit will
accrue to the Group from these and the costs can be reliably determined. Expenses for repairs and servicing
which do not represent material replacement investments are recognized as expenditure in the period in which
they are incurred.
Scheduled depreciation of limited-life property, plant and equipment is carried out using the straight-line
method in relation to the foreseeable useful life. Where there are indications of impairment with any of the
assets and where the present values of the future net cash flow are below the carrying amount, adjustment is
made to the lower fair value in accordance with IAS 36.
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The following useful lives were used as a basis for property, plant and equipment:
Useful life in years
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Investments in third-party buildings
Machinery
Office equipment
Vehicles

25
5
3
3
5

–
–
–
–
–

50
20
21
23
12

Lease agreements
Finance leases
Lease agreements where Züblin is the lessee and where Züblin bears all material opportunities and risks associated with the object in accordance with IAS 17 are capitalized. They are capitalized at the lower of the fair
value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Depreciation/amortization takes
place on a scheduled basis over the economic useful life of the asset or the term of the lease agreement if this
is shorter. The depreciation method used for comparable acquired assets or assets produced in-house is
used here.
The payment obligations arising from future lease instalments are recognized as a liability. The present value of
the minimum lease payments must be recognized here. In subsequent years, the lease instalments are
divided into an interest and principal component, meaning that the lease liability carries a constant interest
rate. The interest component is recognized through the income statement.
Operating leasing
Both expenses and income from operating lease agreements are recognized in the income statement over the
term of the relevant agreements.

Public sector grants
Public sector subsidies and investment grants are deducted from the respective asset on the assets side and
taken into consideration on a scheduled basis in line with its useful life. These are recognized at the time at
which it can be assumed with great certainty that the grant will be provided and the Group will fulfil the necessary conditions to receive the grant.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs which can be directly assigned to the acquisition or manufacture of a qualified asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of purchase or manufacture. Those assets for which a considerable period is
required to get them ready for their intended use or sale count as qualified assets. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as expenditure in the period in which they accrue.
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Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets which are subject to scheduled depreciation/amortization are tested for impairment if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may no longer be recoverable. Assets which have
an undetermined useful life, such as goodwill or intangible assets that are not yet ready for use, are tested
annually for impairment, since assets of this kind are not subject to any scheduled depreciation/ amortization.
The recoverable amount is determined to establish the impairment required. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the fair value of the asset less costs to sell and its value in use. If a recoverable amount cannot be
determined for an individual asset, the recoverable amount for the smallest identifiable group of assets (cash
generating unit – CGU) to which the asset in question can be assigned is determined.
Since, as a rule, there are no market prices for individual units, the present value of net cash inflows is used to
determine the fair value less costs to sell. The forecast of cash flows is based on Züblin’s current planning,
which has a planning horizon of at least four years. In justified individual cases, the detailed planning period is
extended if this will improve the presentation of future cash flows. The last detailed planning year provides the
basis for calculating perpetuity if usability of the cash generating unit is not limited to a shorter period because
of legal conditions.
In determining the fair value less costs to sell, the cash generating unit is valued from the perspective of an
independent market participant, whereas the calculation of an asset’s value in use depends on cash flows
based on its use to date. Individual growth rates derived from market information based on long-term business expectations are determined for net cash inflows beyond the detailed planning period.
Net cash inflows are discounted at cost of capital rates. Here, account is taken of the different return and risk
profiles of the various areas in which Züblin’s activities are focused. The growth rate and cost of capital rate
parameters for the impairment tests can be found in the following table:
%
Growth rate
Cost of capital rate (after taxes)
Cost of capital rate (before taxes)

2013
0.5
7.5–8.0
10.7–11.3

2012
0.5
6.9–7.4
9.8–10.5

The management has determined the budgeted gross margin on the basis of past developments and expectations regarding future market development.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is lower than its carrying amount, the value of the asset is immediately
adjusted through the income statement. In the case of value adjustments in connection with cash generating
units which contain goodwill, existing goodwill is reduced to start with. If the value adjustment required exceeds the carrying amount of the goodwill, the difference is usually divided proportionately among the cash
generating unit’s remaining non-current assets.
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With the exception of goodwill, those non-monetary assets for which impairment has been recognized in the
past are checked at each balance sheet date to determine whether the original value must be reinstated.

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet if Züblin has a contractual right to receive
cash and cash equivalents or other financial assets from another party. In principle, market purchases and
sales of financial assets are accounted for on the settlement date.
Financial assets are recognized for the first time at fair value plus transaction costs. Transaction costs which
are incurred on the acquisition of financial assets valued at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognized as expense. Non-interest bearing or low interest bearing receivables are recognized at the present
value of expected future cash flows on first-time recognition.
They are subsequently valued in accordance with the allocation of the financial assets to the following categories specified in IAS 39, for which different valuation rules apply in each case. Allocation takes place when
they are recognized for the first time:
a) Assets valued at fair value through profit or loss
At Züblin, assets valued at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial assets which are held for trading
purposes. A financial asset is assigned to this category if it was acquired in principle with the intention of selling it in the short-term. Derivatives are also included in this category unless they qualify for hedge accounting.
Assets in this category are shown as current assets if realization of the asset is expected within twelve months.
All other assets are classified as non-current. Changes in the value of assets valued at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized in the income statement.
b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not
listed on an active market. They rank among current assets unless their maturity date is more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, in which case they are reported as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
c) Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets, which were assigned either to this category or to none of the other categories shown. Changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as available for sale are recognized in other comprehensive income. If assets of this category are sold or subject to
impairment, the cumulative changes in the fair value previously recognized in equity must be recognized
through profit or loss in the income statement.
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Impairment of financial assets
At each closing date and if there are indications of impairment, the carrying amounts of financial assets which
are not valued at fair value through profit or loss must be tested for impairment. An impairment charge results
from comparing the carrying amount and the fair value. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment charge must be recognized through profit or loss in other operating income or in results from participations. Impairments must be reversed if objective facts emerge after the balance sheet date which argue in
favour of a reinstatement of the original value. The asset may only be written up up to the amount of amortized cost of purchase which would have resulted if the impairment had not been recognized.
Impairments are recognized in the Group if the debtor company has considerable financial difficulties, it is
highly likely that insolvency proceedings will be initiated against it if the technological, economic and legal
environment as well as the market environment of the issuer has changed significantly or the fair value of a
financial instrument falls below the amortized cost permanently.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized if the contractual rights to payments from the financial assets no longer
exist or the financial assets are transferred with all material risks and opportunities.

Trade receivables and other receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables are valued at cost of purchase less value adjustments for individual
identifiable risks. To take account of general credit risks in relation to customer receivables, value adjustments
graded according to risk groups are applied. Actual defaults lead to the receivables in question being derecognized.

Actual and deferred taxes on income
Receivables and liabilities from taxes on income mainly contain claims and obligations from domestic and
foreign taxes on income. These comprise both the current year and any claims and obligations from previous
years. The receivables and liabilities are calculated on the basis of the tax rules in the respective countries.
Deferred taxes are determined using the balance sheet liability method under IAS 12 for all temporary differences between the valuation of the balance sheet items in the IRFS consolidated financial statements and the
respective tax base applicable to the individual companies. Furthermore, the probably realizable tax benefits
arising from existing losses carried forward is included in the determination. Differences resulting from goodwill
that are not tax-deductible represent exceptions to this comprehensive deferment of taxes.
Deferred tax assets are only shown if it is probable that the relevant tax benefit is realizable. The measurement
of the tax deferment is based on the income tax rate applicable in the respective country at the time of the
expected reversal of the difference in value.
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Deferred tax liabilities which arise from temporary differences in connection with participations in subsidiaries
and associated companies are recognized unless the date on which the temporary differences will be reversed can be determined in the Group and it is likely that the temporary differences will not be reversed in a
foreseeable period because of this influence.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost of purchase or manufacture or their net realizable value.
The cost of manufacture includes all direct costs as well as a reasonable proportion of the indirect costs
caused during production. Sales costs and general administration costs are not included in the cost of
manufacture. Interest on borrowing in connection with the production of key inventories which are to be
classified as qualifying assets is capitalized.

Construction contracts
Earnings from construction contracts are realized in accordance with the percentage of completion method
specified in IAS 11. Work accomplished by the balance sheet date is used to determine the degree of
completion.
If the earnings from a construction contract can be reliably determined and it is likely that the contract will be
profitable, revenues from the contract are recognized over the duration of the contract in line with progress on
the work. If it is likely that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenues, the expected loss is
immediately recognized as expenditure in its entirety. It is shown as an impairment of receivables from construction contracts and, in as much as the anticipated loss exceeds receivables from construction contracts
from the specific project, as a provision.
If the future earnings cannot be reliably established because of uncertainties concerning future construction
progress, the construction contract is recognized at the job order costs involved.
Where the measured performance that has been rendered within the framework of a construction contract
exceeds the corresponding advance payments received, it is carried as assets under “receivables from construction contracts”. In the opposite case, it is entered separately under liabilities.
Profit realization in the case of construction contracts carried out in joint venture is reported according to the
work accomplished by the balance sheet date using the percentage of completion method. Anticipated losses
from work in progress are taken into account by corresponding adjustments for impairment. Receivables from
and payables to joint ventures also include – besides capital contributions, inpayments, withdrawals and
activity allocations – the pro rata profit from the contract.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise all near-liquidity assets which at the time of acquisition or investment
have a residual term of less than three months. Cash and cash equivalents are valued at net cost.
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Provisions
There are defined benefit plans in the Group for which provisions must be created. With defined benefit plans,
the company has an obligation to fulfil commitments made to present and former employees. There are no
defined contribution plans in the form of financing through support funds outside the Group.
Provisions for termination pay
The Group is obliged by law to pay a non-recurrent termination bonus to employees of Austrian subsidiaries
who joined before 1 January 2003 in the event of termination or at the time of retirement. This pay is
dependent on the number of service years worked and the relevant remuneration at the time of termination
and ranges from two to twelve monthly salaries. There are provisions formed to meet this obligation.
For employees of Austrian subsidiaries who started work after 1 January 2003, the termination bonus
obligations are met by regular payment of corresponding contributions to the employee pension fund.
The provisions for termination pay are determined in accordance with actuarial principles using the projected
unit credit method. For this purpose, future salary increases are taken into account to project the employees’
expected entitlement in relation to the period of employment. The present value of the partial entitlements
already earned by the balance sheet date is assigned to provisions.
Provisions for pensions
Provisions for pensions are created for obligations arising from future entitlements of present employees and
ongoing payments to present and former employees and their surviving dependants. In the Group, pension
commitments are based on individual contracts or company agreements. The obligations are based on a
large number of different pension arrangements. The large number of different pension plans is the result of
companies having been acquired by the Group in the past. New agreements are not concluded in the Group.
As a rule, the commitments provide for the granting of monthly retirement, invalidity and surviving dependants’
pensions. Some commitments also provide for payment in the form of a capital sum.
The pension plans are structured in different forms. The pension plan structure ranges from fixed amount
systems (e.g. amount per service year) through dynamic systems (e.g. % per service year) to specific benefits
(e.g. fixed commitment). Likewise there are pension plans which offer surviving dependants’ pensions and
those that do not.
Valuation of the provisions for pensions
The Group’s obligations from defined benefit pension plans are determined separately for each plan in
accordance with actuarial principles using the projected unit credit method. This method, measuring the
present value of the pension expectancy, serves to determine the discounted pension entitlement acquired up
to the balance sheet date. The existing plan assets are deducted from the gross obligation at their fair value.
This results in the net debt to be recognized or the net asset to be recognized.
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The determination of the net debt on the closing date is based on an actuarial opinion from a qualified
actuarial expert.
The discount rate for provisions for pensions is established on the basis of yields which are achieved for top
rated, fixed interest industrial bonds with comparable maturities on the market.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in equity without effect on income. The service cost is shown under
personnel expenses, while the interest portion for the transfer to provisions is disclosed under financial results.
If the present value of a defined benefit obligation changes as a result of changes to the plan, the resulting
effects will be recognized through profit or loss as past service cost in the year the plan changes. Results
stemming from compensation are also recognized immediately in the income statement.
The company is exposed to various risks in connection with defined benefit pension plans. With regard to the
risks, please refer to the sensitivity analysis in the relevant explanations under [19] in the notes.
Other provisions
The other provisions take account of all recognizable risks and contingent obligations. They are recognized,
on the basis of commercial judgment, to the amount required to cover the Group’s future payment obligations.
In each case, the amount entered is the one that is most probable after careful examination of the facts.
Non-current provisions are, unless they are of secondary importance, reported at the discounted settlement
value at the balance sheet date. The settlement value also includes cost increases to be taken into account
on the balance sheet date.

Non-financial liabilities
The non-financial liabilities shown under other liabilities are reported at repayment value. Overpayments from
construction contracts are classified as non-financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities
The financial liabilities consist of primary liabilities.
Primary liabilities are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when Züblin has a contractual duty to
transfer cash and other financial assets to another party. A primary liability is recognized at fair value when it is
recognized for the first time. Any premiums, discounts or other differences between the amount received and
the amount due for repayment are spread over the term of the financing using the effective interest method
and recognized on an accrual basis in interest cost.
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are settled, cancelled or have expired.

ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013 y 69

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are possible or existing obligations where resource withdrawal is not likely. They are not
reported in the balance sheet. The figure for obligations stated under contingent liabilities corresponds to the
extent of the liability existing on the balance sheet date.

Revenue realization
Sales revenues comprise the fair value of the consideration received or to be received for the sale of goods
and services as part of ordinary operating activities.
Sales revenues from construction contracts are realized on an ongoing basis using the percentage of
completion method. The measure for the degree of completion is the work accomplished by the balance
sheet date.
Sales revenues from the sale of the Group’s own projects, supplies and services to joint ventures and from
other services are realized when the power of disposal and the opportunities and risks associated therewith
are transferred or when the service is supplied.
Supplementary work associated with construction orders are services which cannot be settled on the basis of
existing contractual agreements but for settlement or acceptance of which an agreement with the client still
has to be produced. Stringent rules apply to the valuation of these supplementary works. Essentially, the
valuation is based on the status of negotiations with the client. While costs are recognized immediately in the
income statement, revenues from supplementary work are, in principle, not realized until written acknowledgement has been received from the client or on payment of the supplementary work if payment is received before the written acknowledgement.
Other earnings, such as rental income or the passing on of expenses, are recognized on the basis of the
amount accrued in line with the respective agreements.
Dividends and shares of profits from participations are recognized when the legal right to payments has
accrued.
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate once the income has accrued.

Estimates
Estimates and assumptions relating to the amount and balance sheet presentation of the assets and liabilities,
income and expenses as well as to the disclosure of contingent liabilities are necessary for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements according to IFRS.
The estimates and assumptions which pose a significant risk in the form of a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
a) Intrinsic value of goodwill
In compliance with the accounting and valuation methods presented, the Group checks annually whether
goodwill is impaired. The recoverable amount of cash generating units (CGU) was determined on the basis of
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calculations of their value in use. These calculations must be based on assumptions about expected future
business development and achievable margins. In relation to expected future business development, the
situation at the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements is taken into account and a
realistic assessment of the future development of the regional and branch-specific environment is made.
Within this general framework, changes may occur that differ from the assumptions and are beyond the
control of the Management Board. As a result, the actual amounts may not correspond to the values
estimated.
b) Realization of revenues from construction contracts
Revenues from construction contracts are accounted for by using the percentage of completion method. Here,
the Group estimates the percentage of the entire contract that has been accomplished up to the balance
sheet date and the costs of the contract still to be incurred. If the costs of the contract exceed the total
contract revenues, the expected loss is recognized as expenditure. Particularly with technically complex and
demanding projects, there is a risk that the estimate of the total costs may differ considerably from the costs
actually incurred.
c) Taxes on income
Züblin has to calculate the expected actual tax on income for each taxpayer, and the temporary differences
resulting from differences in the treatment of certain balance sheet items between the IFRS consolidated
balance sheet and the balance sheet produced for tax purposes must be assessed. If there are temporary
differences, these differences lead in principle to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities being recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
The management must make judgements in the calculation of actual and deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is likely that they can be used. The use of deferred tax assets depends on
the possibility of achieving sufficient taxable income, in the context of the respective type of tax and tax jurisdiction, whereby legal restrictions regarding the maximum period in which tax losses can be carried forward
may have to be taken into account. Various factors must be consulted in assessing how likely it is that deferred tax assets can be used, such as the profit situation in the past, operational planning, the periods in
which tax losses can be carried forward and tax planning strategies. If actual results deviate from these estimates or if these estimates have to be adjusted in future periods, this could have an adverse effect on the net
assets, financial position and profit situation. If there is a change to the assessment of the value of deferred
tax assets, the deferred tax assets recognized must be written down – in line with their original creation –
through profit or loss or without any effect on income or impaired deferred tax assets must be capitalized
through profit or loss or without any effect on income.
d) Fair value of other financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments not traded on an active market is determined by applying suitable
valuation techniques which are selected from a large number of methods. The assumptions used here are
largely based on market conditions prevailing on the balance sheet date. The Group uses present value
methods to determine the fair value of large numbers of available for sale financial assets which are not traded
on active markets.
e) Provisions for pensions
The present value of the pension obligation depends on a large number of factors, which are based on actuarial assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net expenses or income for pensions include the

ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013 y 71

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
discount rate. Each change to these assumptions will have an impact on the carrying amount of the pension
obligation.
The Group establishes the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate, which is
used to settle the obligation in the calculation of the present value of expected future cash outflows. In determining the discount rate, the Group takes the interest rate on top-rated, fixed income corporate bonds as a
basis, which are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are paid and whose maturities
match those of the pension obligation.
f) Other provisions
Particularly with other construction-related provisions, there is a risk in individual cases that the actual costs of
warranties or residual performance will be higher. However, this risk is reduced in the majority of projects
through case-by-case analysis. This is also true of provisions in connection with legal disputes.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

(1) Sales revenues
The sales revenues of T € 3,026,398 (previous year: T € 2,799,666) concern in particular proceeds from
construction contracts, proceeds from the sale of the Group’s own projects, supplies and services to joint
ventures, other services as well as shares in profits from joint ventures. The sales revenues from construction
contracts, which include partial profits on an accrual basis according to the actual work accomplished (percentage of completion method), total T € 2,828,244 (previous year: T € 2,564,947).
The sales revenues only convey an incomplete picture of the performance rendered during the financial year.
Therefore, the entire economic performance of the Group is shown and this comprises the proportionate
performance in joint ventures and investments.
Construction activities break down as follows:

Germany
International

2013
T€
2,181,123
905,127
3,086,250

2012
T€
2,057,552
1,016,986
3,074,538

2013
T€
13,344

2012
T€
14,549

6,074
4,077
1,737
1,663
1,232
1,043
141
0
3,347
32,658

2,661
4,273
2,140
1,348
2,897
2,208
11,876
4,249
4,780
50,981

2013
T€
521,575
1,613,200
2,134,775

2012
T€
455,712
1,528,602
1,984,314

(2) Other operating income

Insurance refunds, payment of damages, compensations
Income from the disposal of fixed assets with the exception
of financial assets
Rental and lease income
Derecognition of liabilities and reimbursement of expenses (previous years)
Investment allowances and public sector subsidies
Income from writing back value adjustments on current assets
Gains on foreign currency translation
Income from the retransfer of provisions
Income from deconsolidation
Miscellaneous

(3) Cost of materials and purchased services

Cost of materials
Cost of purchased services
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The cost of purchased services relates in particular to services rendered by subcontractors as well as
design/planning work, rent of equipment and repairs carried out by third parties.

(4) Personnel expenses

Wages
Salaries
Social security contributions and expenses relating to benefits
Cost of pensions and similar obligations
Cost of termination pay

2013
T€
167,367
337,547
89,723
2,650
11
597,298

2012
T€
159,570
314,766
82,677
2,432
9
559,454

The cost of termination pay or pensions and similar obligations includes the service cost and the pension
entitlements earned during the financial year from partial-retirement entitlements converted to pensions to the
amount of T € 684 (previous year: T € 458). The interest element from “cost of pensions and similar obligations” is shown under “interest”.
The average number of employees is as follows:

Non-manual employees
Manual employees

2013
5,762
6,620
12,382

2012
5,351
6,693
12,044

2013
T€
28,963
25,914
22,741
18,147
10,920
8,347
7,628
5,862
5,700
3,756
3,014
2,004
14,198
157,194

2012
T€
28,445
24,546
17,553
20,665
10,520
6,334
12,096
6,267
3,518
3,500
5,631
2,614
11,789
153,478

(5) Other operating expenses

Various services and fees
Travel and advertising expenses
Administration costs
Rental and lease expenses
Guarantee certificate costs
Discount/impairment current assets
Insurance premiums
Contributions, fees and charges
Losses from currency translation
Professional development measures
Allocations to/withdrawals from provisions
Other taxes
Miscellaneous

74 y ED. ZÜBLIN AG 2013

FOREWORD
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITOR’S REPORT

(6) Results from equity participations

Income from participations in associated companies
Expenses from participations in associated companies

2013
T€
0
– 8,665
– 8,665

2012
T€
2,323
– 48
2,275

In the previous year, income from equity participations were attributable to Züblin International Qatar L.L.C.,
Doha/Qatar, and BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH, Cologne, expenses from equity
participations were attributable to BMTI – Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH, Cologne.

(7) Other results from participations

Income from participations
Expenses from participations
Write-down on shares in participations

2013
T€
6,548
– 547
– 419
5,582

2012
T€
2,858
–3
– 476
2,379

(8) Depreciation/amortization of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Scheduled depreciation/amortization and impairment losses are reported in the “Statement of changes in
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment”.
In the reporting year, goodwill suffered impairment losses to the amount of T € 2,500 (previous year: T € 0). As
in the previous year, property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets suffered no impairment losses.

(9) Interest

Interest and other financial income
Interest and other financial expenses

2013
T€
19,831
– 7,573
12,258

2012
T€
13,944
– 9,601
4,343

“Interest and other financial expenses” includes interest elements from the transfer to termination pay and
pension provisions to the amount of T € 4,573 (previous year: T € 5,367) as well as from finance leasing to the
amount of T € 834 (previous year: T € 1,049). Financial expenses also include write-downs on loans amounting to T € 809 (previous year: T € 866).
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(10) Taxes on income
This item comprises taxes on income paid or owed by the individual companies as well as deferred taxes.

Actual taxes
Deferred taxes
Taxes on income

2013
T€
33,248
– 146
33,102

2012
T€
27,125
5,179
32,304

Deferred taxes on actuarial losses of T € 976 (previous year: T € 5,079) are recorded neutrally in the statement
of comprehensive income.
The reasons for the difference between the German income tax rate of 29.83% (previous year: 29.83%) and
the Group’s overall tax ratio is presented as follows:

Earnings before taxes
Theoretical tax expenditure 29.83%
Difference to tax rates abroad
Tax effects from:
Expenses not deductible against tax
Tax-free earnings
“At equity” reporting of associated companies
Effects from capital consolidation
Tax refunds/additional tax payments
Change in the value adjustment on deferred tax assets
Other
Tax expenditure reported
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2013
T€
120,050

2012
T€
119,057

35,811
– 1,038

35,515
– 789

2,850
– 2,921
2,585
1,396
– 3,657
– 2,458
534
33,102

1,057
– 1,967
– 640
1,123
531
– 2,059
– 467
32,304
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NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

(11) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
The composition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment is shown in changes thereto.
No borrowing costs were capitalized for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the reporting
year.
Goodwill
At the balance sheet date, goodwill breaks down as follows:

Ed. Züblin AG1)
Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH
HERMANN KIRCHNER Hoch- und Ingenieurbau GmbH
N.V. STRABAG Belgium S.A.
STRABAG Qatar W.L.L.
Züblin Stahlbau GmbH/NE Sander-Gruppe
Josef Riepl Unternehmen für Ingenieur- und Hochbau GmbH
Eberhard Pöhner Unternehmen für Hoch- und Tiefbau GmbH
REPASS-SANIERUNGSTECHNIK GMBH
1)

31/12/2013
T€
16,935
8,632
5,667
3,300
3,254
2,500
1,317
1,000
551
43,156

31/12/2012
T€
15,100
11,132
5,667
3,300
3,254
2,500
1,317
1,000
551
43,821

From 2013, the figures include timber engineering activities from the acquisition of Metsä Wood Merk GmbH

The comparison of carrying amounts with the respective recoverable amount of the cash generating units as
part of the annual impairment test resulted in impairment charges of € 2.5 million (previous year: € 0 million)
being required as at 31 December 2013 in the CGU Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH. The impairment
was recognised on the basis of a reduction in the amount of income expected in the business segment
specialising in the construction of furnaces and industrial chimneys using the cost of capital rates cited in the
accounting and valuation methods.
Because of the industry’s specific characteristics (long-term production), multi-year planning is subject to
uncertainties. Should our planned targets not be met in relation to operating performance and expected return,
further impairment of goodwill is possible. Minor changes in the discount rate would not require any adjustments for impairment.
Development costs
Expenses for research and development are incurred in numerous technical special proposals, in actual competing projects and in introducing construction projects and products on the market.
As in the previous year, no development expenses were capitalized in the 2013 financial year. Research and
development expenses incurred in the 2013 financial year in the amount of T € 4,917 (previous year:
T € 7,132) did not fulfil the criteria for capitalization and were therefore expensed in full.
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Leasing
At the balance sheet date, the following carrying amounts, which are not freely at the Group’s disposal
because of existing finance lease agreements, are included in “property, plant and equipment”.
31/12/2013
T€
11,061
928
11,989

Real estate leases
Equipment leases

31/12/2012
T€
12,941
5,511
18,452

On the other hand, lease liabilities are reported with a present value of T € 10,070 (previous year: T € 14,523).
The lease term of the finance lease agreements for real estate is 20 years, the term of the equipment leases
ranges from two to five years. The payments made for the 2013 financial year amount to T € 2,476 (previous
year: T € 3,517).
The payment obligations resulting from these lease agreements over the next few years are presented as
follows:

Term up to one year
Term from one to five years

Present values
31/12/2013
31/12/2012
T€
T€
774
2,541
9,296
11,982
10,070
14,523

Minimum lease payments
31/12/2013
31/12/2012
T€
T€
1,476
3,533
10,213
13,759
11,689
17,292

The reconciliation of the minimum lease payments with the liabilities from finance leases recognised as at
31 December is presented as follows:

Minimum lease payments 31/12
Interest
Currency differences
Lease liabilities 31/12

31/12/2013
T€
11,689
– 1,590
– 29
10,070

31/12/2012
T€
17,292
– 2,777
8
14,523

In addition to the finance lease agreements there are also operating lease agreements for the use of assets.
The expenses arising from these agreements are recognized in the income statement. The payments made in
the 2013 financial year total T € 11,517 (previous year: T € 10,197).
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The payment obligations resulting from operating lease agreements over the next few financial years are
presented as follows:
31/12/2013
T€
8,195
21,231
18,157
47,583

Term up to one year
Term from one to five years
Term more than five years

31/12/2012
T€
9,819
11,916
8,030
29,765

Restrictions on disposal/purchase commitments
In the previous year, land charges were entered with respect to land with carrying amounts of T € 17,514 in
order to provide a collateral for financing to the amount of T € 4,356.
As at the balance sheet date, there were obligations to the amount of T € 9,966 (previous year: T € 4,676) in
connection with the purchase of property, plant and equipment which have not yet been taken into account in
the financial statements.

(12) Financial assets
Details on the Group’s participations (shares of more than 20%) are shown in the statement of shareholdings.
The development of financial assets in the financial year is presented as follows:

Shares in equity
participations
Shares in
affiliated
companies
Other
participations
Loans to
affiliated
companies
Other financial
assets

As at
31/12/2012
T€

Change
in consolidated
companies/
currency
differences
T€

Additions
T€

4,930

– 182

7,701

Disposals
T€

Writedowns/
writeups
T€

As at
31/12/2013
T€

0

– 3,234

0

1,514

0

30

0

– 233

7,498

3,167

0

44

–4

– 186

3,021

163

0

850

– 41

– 809

163

11,031

0

924

– 45

– 1,228

10,682

With the exception of shares in equity participations, financial assets are all measured at amortized cost.
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The value adjustments to the financial assets valued in accordance with IAS 39 have evolved as follows in the
financial year:

Gross amount
Value adjustment
As at 01/01
Change in consolidated
companies/reclassifications
Changes in the current year
As at 31/12
Carrying amount

Shares in affiliated
companies/participations
(IAS 39)
31/12/2013
31/12/2012
T€
T€
16,742
15,943

Loans
31/12/2013
31/12/2012
T€
T€
3,561
2,752

5,075

6,517

2,589

1,723

729
419
6,223

– 1,918
476
5,075

0
809
3,398

0
866
2,589

10,519

10,868

163

163

The following table provides a summarized overview of financial information (100%) on associated companies:

Balance sheet total
Total liabilities
Sales revenues
Profit/loss for the year

2013
€ million
71.0
66.6
237.7
– 18.2

2012
€ million
67.8
53.6
259.7
5.6

In the reporting year, pro rata losses not recognized in the balance sheet occurred to the amount of T € 302
(previous year: T € 105). The cumulative pro rata loss in the financial year comes to T € 522 (previous year:
T € 220).
The following financial information is provided for joint ventures where the option of at-equity valuation in
accordance with IAS 31.38 (joint ventures) was exercised:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Expenses
Proceeds

2013
€ million
3.7
4.0
1.1
6.7
22.9
22.3

2012
€ million
4.4
12.6
2.1
13.8
99.6
99.7

Given their minor significance, no summary financial information was provided for any other participation.
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(13) Deferred taxes
Temporary differences between the valuations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRS and the respective tax valuations have the following effect on the respective tax deferrals shown in the
balance sheet:
31/12/2013
Deferred
Deferred
tax assets
tax liabilities
T€
T€
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Receivables and other assets
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Current liabilities
Provisions
Payables and sundry
Fiscal losses carried forward
Capitalized fiscal losses carried forward
Offsetting of tax assets and liabilities
Balance sheet entry

31/12/2012
Deferred
Deferred
tax assets
tax liabilities
T€
T€

2,492
0

3,370
10,102

2,742
0

3,070
13,792

1,014

57,049

0

51,057

15,950

0

16,680

0

7,925
2,825

0
0

2,113
3,407

0
0

11,569
41,775
– 35,703
6,072

0
70,521
– 35,703
34,818

13,128
38,070
– 34,603
3,467

0
67,919
– 34,603
33,316

2013
T€
– 29,849
146
976
– 17
– 28,744

2012
T€
– 27,505
– 5,179
5,079
– 2,244
– 29,849

The development of deferred taxes is presented as follows:

As at 01/01 Credit balance(+)/debit balance(–)
Change recognized in the income statement
Change not recognized in the income statement (IAS 19)
Other change
As at 31/12 Credit balance(+)/debit balance(–)

The other change in the previous year is mainly the result of first-time consolidation. As at the balance sheet
date, deferred tax liabilities recognized in equity with no impact on the income statement amount to T € 7,746
(previous year: T € 6,770).
Deferred taxes on losses carried forward have been capitalized in as much as they can probably be netted off
against future profits. For differences in carrying amounts and fiscal losses carried forward with regard to corporation tax of T € 81,284 (previous year: T € 67,977) and trade tax of T € 6,644 (previous year: T € 9,816),
deferred tax assets were not recognized because their effectiveness in terms of tax relief is not sufficiently
assured. Non-capitalized tax losses carried forward can, as a rule, be used for an unlimited period.
Deferred tax assets on loss-related temporary differences amounting to some € 0.8 million (previous year:
some € 6 million) were not recognized because their effectiveness in terms of tax relief is not sufficiently
assured.
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(14) Inventories
31/12/2013
T€
40,451
2,589
0
15,450
13,084
71,574

Raw materials and supplies
Finished products, goods and buildings
Unfinished products and buildings
Land without buildings
Advance payments made

31/12/2012
T€
29,127
4,303
770
15,450
29,611
79,261

As in the previous year, no impairments were recorded in inventories in the financial year. The impaired land
without buildings is shown with a net realizable value of T € 14,300 (previous year: T € 14,300). The other
inventories of T € 57,275 (previous year: T € 64,961) are recognized at the cost of purchase or manufacture.
Land without buildings contains carrying amounts of T € 14,300, which are not likely to be realizable within
one year.

(15) Receivables and other assets
The receivables and other assets are broken down as follows:
31/12/2013
of which

Trade receivables
Receivables from
construction contracts
for which advance payments
received
Remaining trade receivables
Receivables from joint ventures
Non-financial assets
Receivables from taxes on
income
Other receivables and assets
Receivables from
affiliated companies
Receivables from companies in
which participations are held
Remaining receivables
and assets
Total
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31/12/2012
of which

total
T€

current
T€

noncurrent
T€

total
T€

current
T€

noncurrent
T€

1,792,418

1,792,418

0

1,565,639

1,565,639

0

0 – 1,270,922 – 1,270,922
0
294,717
294,717
176
116,273
115,969
0
66,391
66,391
176
477,381
477,077
0
10,084
10,084

0
0
304
0
304
0

– 1,484,586 – 1,484,586
307,832
307,832
132,099
131,923
68,522
68,522
508,453
508,277
6,642
6,642
11,448

8,193

3,255

16,710

7,246

9,464

26,096

26,096

0

32,562

32,562

0

42,681

42,681

0

15,886

5,773

10,113

23,787
92,564
619,107

21,303
90,080
613,192

2,484
2,484
5,915

25,826
74,274
578,449

20,083
58,418
552,825

5,743
15,856
25,624
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Income taxes are reported separately to improve presentation. In the previous year, they were reported under
non-financial receivables. The previous year’s figures were adjusted to reflect the change in reporting.
The receivables from construction contracts concerning all contracts not yet invoiced as at the balance
sheet date are broken down as follows:

Costs accrued by the balance sheet date
Profits accrued by the balance sheet date
Cumulative losses
Minus receivables reported under liabilities
Receivables from construction contracts

31/12/2013
T€
2,599,495
180,601
– 87,405
– 900,273
1,792,418

31/12/2012
T€
2,543,306
156,054
– 82,609
– 1,051,112
1,565,639

Receivables from construction contracts to the amount of T € 900,273 (previous year: T € 1,051,112) are
reported under liabilities because the advance payments received exceed the amount of receivables.
In accordance with custom in this branch of business, the client may withhold invoice settlement to safeguard
his contractual rights. The amounts withheld are as a rule covered by collateral (bank or Group guarantees).
Please refer to [22] Financial instruments/credit risk with regard to the criteria for the creation of value adjustments.
Value adjustments on “remaining trade receivables” have evolved as follows during the financial year:

Gross amount
Value adjustment
As at 01/01
Changes in consolidated companies
Transfer/utilization
As at 31/12
Carrying amount

31/12/2013
T€
151,475

31/12/2012
T€
132,186

15,913
481
2,982
19,376

16,964
33
– 1,084
15,913

132,099

116,273
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The value adjustments on receivables from affiliated companies which are not consolidated are broken down
as follows:
31/12/2013
T€
40,278

31/12/2012
T€
41,195

Value adjustment
As at 01/01
Changes in consolidated companies
Transfer/utilization
As at 31/12

8,633
2,225
3,324
14,182

7,819
0
814
8,633

Carrying amount

26,096

32,562

Gross amount

The value adjustments on receivables from companies in which participations are held evolved as follows in
the financial year:
31/12/2013
T€
42,883

31/12/2012
T€
15,988

Value adjustment
As at 01/01
Transfer/utilization
As at 31/12

102
100
202

2,000
– 1,898
102

Carrying amount

42,681

15,886

31/12/2013
T€
2,812
478
691,300
694,590

31/12/2012
T€
2,812
412
620,636
623,860

Gross amount

(16) Cash and cash equivalents

Securities
Cash in hand
Bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents include balances abroad amounting to T € 16,785 (previous year: T € 8,757),
which are subject to restrictions on transfer in as much as a monetary transfer to other countries may only
take place once the construction contracts have been concluded and declared. Cash and cash equivalents
are not pledged.
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(17) Equity
The company’s capital stock amounts to € 20,451,675.25, divided into 8,000,000 no-par shares.
The General Meeting of Ed. Züblin AG on 11 July 2013 resolved to pay a dividend of € 0.1025 per no-par
share entitled to dividends (= € 820,000.00) from the net profit from the 2012 financial year of
€ 26,214,523.80, to allocate an amount of € 25,394,000.00 to other retained earnings and to carry the
remaining amount of € 523.80 forward to new account.
In its separate financial statements prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code, Ed. Züblin
AG reports a net income for the year 2013 of € 24,736,072.30 (previous year: T € 59,918). Of this figure,
€ 12,368,000.00 were allocated to other retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German
Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
The reserves shown in the balance sheet encompass currency differences, statutory and free retained
earnings, changes in financial instruments with no effect on income and changes in equity with no effect on
income based on actuarial gains/losses in the calculation of provisions for personnel.
STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, has held a majority share in Ed. Züblin AG since 23 November 2005. Its direct
voting stock comes to 57.26%.
The Group’s capital management is aimed at safeguarding an appropriate credit rating and complying with
national and international criteria for project tenders through an appropriate equity ratio (on an equity including
outside shares ratio). Ed. Züblin AG ensures that all Group companies have sufficient capital in the form of
equity and outside capital.
There are no external minimum capital requirements.
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(18) Provisions
Currency

Change

differences/

in con-

As at

reclassifi-

solidated

31/12/2012

cations

companies

Transfer

transfer

T€

T€

T€

T€

T€

Provisions for
termination pay
Provisions for
pensions
Constructionrelated provisions
Workforcerelated provisions
Remaining
provisions
Non-current
provisions
Constructionrelated provisions
Workforcerelated provisions
Remaining
provisions
Current provisions
Total

252

Re-

Utili-

As at

zation 31/12/2013

T€

T€

36

288

120,933

– 40

– 24

8,470

0

7,906

121,433

54,157

– 3,629

180

11,293

0

7,561

54,440

4,330

34

33

2,037

0

3,760

2,674

5,477

– 1,026

264

2,143

0

813

6,045

185,149

– 4,661

453

23,979

0

20,040

184,880

68,722

3,120

11

24,987

141

23,499

73,200

31,636

– 173

180

16,126

0

11,816

35,953

9,410
109,768
294,917

1,408
4,355
– 306

30
221
674

5,025
46,138
70,117

0
141
141

2,256
37,571
57,611

13,617
122,770
307,650

The financial outflows in the case of warranty provisions are generally between one and five years.
Tax provisions are recognised under liabilities from income taxes. The previous year’s figures were amended to
this effect.
Provisions for pensions
The actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2013 to determine the provisions for pensions are
presented in the following table:

Mortality tables
Discount rate
Increase in pensions
Retirement age – men
Retirement age – women
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There have been the following changes in the present value of the pension obligation:

Present value of pension obligations (DBO*) on 01/01
Change in consolidated companies/reclassifications
Service cost
Interest cost
Pension payments
Actuarial gains(–)/losses(+)
resulting from empirical adjustments
Actuarial gains(–)/losses(+)
resulting from a change to the discount rate
Present value of pension obligations (DBO*) on 31/12
Less plan assets
Carrying amount of pension obligations (DBO) on 31/12

2013
T€
125,613
241
672
4,564
– 8,469

2012
T€
110,036
1,242
449
5,356
– 8,397

– 132

1,917

3,391
125,880
– 4,447
121,433

15,010
125,613
– 4,680
120,933

31/12/2013
T€
25,970
– 7,747
18,223

31/12/2012
T€
22,696
– 6,771
15,925

* Defined Benefit Obligation

The cumulative actuarial losses recognized directly in equity are as follows:

Actuarial losses before deferred taxes
Deferred taxes
Actuarial losses after deferred taxes

Pension payments amounting to T € 8,740 are expected for the following year.
The weighted average term of the obligations or the maturity profile is broken down as follows:

Provisions for pensions

≤ 1 year
T€
8,468

1–5 years
T€
41,174

6–20 years
T€
99,327

> 20 years
T€
54,211

The provisions for pensions are exposed to various risks which mainly consist of general fluctuations in
interest rates and inflation. Assuming that all other parameters remained the same, a change in the discount
rate of +/– 0.5 percentage points and a change in the increase in pensions of +/– 0.25 percentage points
would have the following impact on the amount of provisions for termination pay and pensions:

Pension obligation

Discount rate
+ 0.5%
– 0.5%
points
points
T€
T€
119,427
132,970

Increase in pensions
+ 0.25%
– 0.25%
points
points
T€
T€
122,873
129,003
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There is also the risk that general life expectancy will be higher than the figure assumed when valuing the
provisions for pensions. If life expectancy was increased by one year, the pension obligation reported as at
31 December 2013 would amount to T € 131,939.
Other provisions
The construction-related provisions include, inter alia, warranty and guarantee obligations, contract implementation cost, and subsequent cost of contracts already invoiced as well as anticipated losses from pending
business. The workforce-related provisions mainly include profit sharing, anniversary obligations, partialretirement expenses and personnel adjustment expenses. Other provisions include provisions for legal costs,
fees and damages.
The companies included in the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG are exposed to several
threatened or pending legal proceedings whose outcome is either indeterminable or cannot be predicted with
certainty because of the uncertainty connected with legal proceedings of this kind. Provisions have been
created to the extent required for probable or already pending legal proceedings of this kind. This is also true
of legal proceedings of which the Züblin Group has become aware although writs have not yet been served by
the competent courts. Since these provisions, which are taken into account in the consolidated financial
statements, are based on estimates, it is entirely possible that the completion of these proceedings will force
us to make payments above and beyond the amounts provided and whose extent or range could not be
sufficiently precisely determined as at 31 December 2013.
Overall, no negative effects are expected from these proceedings which could have a material impact on the
Group’s net assets, financial position or profit situation.
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(19) Liabilities
The liabilities are broken down as follows:
31/12/2013
of which

Financial liabilities
Payables to banks
– of which secured by
mortgages
Payables arising from finance
leases
Trade payables*
Receivables from
construction contracts
for which advance payments
received
Other trade payables
Liabilities due to joint ventures
Non-financial liabilities
Liabilities from income taxes
Other financial liabilities
Liabilities due to affiliated
companies
Liabilities due to companies in
which participations are held
Remaining liabilities
Total

31/12/2012
of which

total
T€

current
T€

noncurrent
T€

total
T€

current
T€

noncurrent
T€

4,769

11

4,758

25,958

22,758

3,200

2,542
25,300

11,981
15,181

0 – 1,051,112 – 1,051,112

0

(0)

(4,356)

10,070
14,839

774
785

9,296
14,054

14,523
40,481

– 900,273

– 900,273

1,030,152
129,879
523,971
92,787
746,637
39,608
40,763

1,030,152
129,879
522,828
92,787
745,494
39,608
40,763

0
0
1,143
0
1,143
0
0

1,205,828
154,716
477,910
83,710
716,336
40,906
32,302

1,205,828
154,716
476,525
83,710
714,951
40,906
32,302

0
0
1,385
0
1,385
0
0

27,612

27,612

0

18,828

18,828

0

44
54,121
81,777
923,624

44
54,117
81,773
908,423

0
4
4
15,201

5
55,818
74,651
904,676

5
55,811
74,644
888,103

0
7
7
16,573

* The advance payment balance from construction contracts included here is classified as non-financial.

As at the balance sheet date of the previous year, T € 356 of the financial liabilities secured by mortgages
relate to project finance raised by Züblin Projektentwicklung GmbH, Stuttgart.
Income taxes are reported separately to improve presentation. In the previous year, they were reported under
non-financial liabilities. Provisions for taxes, which were included under current provisions, are also reported
under liabilities from income taxes. The previous year’s figures were adjusted to reflect the change in reporting.
Liabilities from income taxes mainly relate to current income taxes. The reporting year resulted in a figure of
T € 25,948 (previous year: T € 20,011).
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(20) Contingent liabilities
The Group has undertaken the following suretyships and guarantees:

Suretyships and guarantees
with the exception of financial guarantees
Liabilities from warranty agreements

31/12/2013
T€

31/12/2012
T€

24,524
0
24,524

22,395
750
23,145

In the construction industry, the issue of various guarantees to cover the commitments contained in construction contracts is both usual and necessary. These guarantees are usually issued by banks or credit
insurance companies (= guarantors) and, in essence, comprise tender guarantees, performance guarantees,
advance payment guarantees and warranty bonds. In the event of a guarantee being called, the guarantors
have a contractual right of recourse against the Group. There is only a risk of a guarantee being called if the
underlying contractual commitments have not been properly fulfilled.
Obligations or probable risks arising under guarantees of this kind are taken into account in the balance sheet
as liabilities or provisions.
The guarantees mainly serve to secure contractual obligations or the ability of subsidiaries to meet their
obligations.
The following additional guarantees in which no amount was specified were provided:
– Ed. Züblin AG undertakes to endow its former subsidiary Züblin Baugesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna/Austria, in
such a way that it is able at any time to fulfil its obligations under the “H3/4 Münster/Wiesing” construction
project properly and on time. In connection with the construction project last mentioned, Ed. Züblin AG
confirms that, in principle, it provides all its investments with full support in terms of expertise, personnel,
plant and technical equipment.
– As the sole shareholder of Züblin AS, Oslo/Norway, Ed. Züblin AG undertakes to provide it with financial
resources until at least March 2014 to enable it to fulfil its obligations to its suppliers and its former employees at any time.
– As part of the “YAS Welcome Pavilion (Ferrari World)” project, Ed. Züblin AG is jointly liable together with its
investment Züblin Construction LLC, Abu Dhabi/UAE, for the correct fulfilment of all contractual obligations.
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Together with companies in the STRABAG SE Group, Ed. Züblin AG has made the following declarations as
part of international projects, although a matching deed of release has been provided by STRABAG SE for all
the following declarations:
For STRABAG a.s., Prague/Czech Republic, support with implementation and, if necessary, the provision of
assets was promised for the following projects:
– Mladoboleslavsko, cleaning and sewerage system II
– Acquisition Center AdMaS - Advanced building materials, construction and technology
– Selection of the general supplier to the NCDT Valtice construction site
For STRABAG Bau GmbH, Vienna/Austria, Ed. Züblin AG has promised that it will maintain the company’s
financial and economic capability as part of the “22, Ertüchtigung Pumpwerk (reinforcement of the pumping
station) SMZ Ost, Vienna” project.
For STRABAG AG, Spittal an der Drau/Austria, as part of the “Trg pravde (Equity Square) in Zagreb” project,
Ed. Züblin AG has promised that it will provide all the resources needed for this project.
As at the balance sheet date, it is considered unlikely that these obligations will arise since the underlying
liabilities can be satisfied by the respective principal debtor.
In the case of joint ventures and similar legal institutions abroad in which companies of the Züblin Group are
participating, there is joint and several liability together with the other partners, as is customary in this branch
of business.

(21) Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is presented using the indirect method, broken down according to cash flows resulting from operating activities, investment activities and financing activities. Cash and cash equivalents consist
exclusively of cash in hand, balances at banks and marketable securities. The effects of changes in the consolidated group were eliminated and shown in cash flow from investment activities.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Marketable securities
Cash in hand
Balances at banks

31/12/2013
T€
2,812
478
691,300
694,590

31/12/2012
T€
2,812
412
620,636
623,860

The following items are included in cash flow from operating activities in the reporting year:

Interest paid
Interest received
Taxes paid (–)/reimbursed (+)
Dividends received

2013
T€
2,190
16,120
– 19,525
4,987

2012
T€
2,733
12,782
– 21,118
2,250

(22) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract which leads simultaneously to a financial asset at one company and to a
financial liability or an equity instrument at another company. In particular, financial assets comprise cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables as well as other receivables and derivatives. As a rule, financial liabilities
establish an obligation to return cash or another financial asset. These include, in particular, financial liabilities
such as liabilities to banks and finance lease liabilities as well as trade payables. In principle, they are recognized for the first time on the settlement date.
Financial instruments are derecognized when the rights to payments from the investment have lapsed or have
been transferred and the Group has, in essence, transferred all risks and opportunities associated with
ownership.
Derivative instruments are used solely to hedge existing currency and interest rate risks. The use of derivative
financial instruments is subject to appropriate authorisation and control processes within the Group. A link to a
hedged item is mandatory; trading transactions are not permissible.
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As at the balance sheet date, financial instruments are broken down as follows:
31/12/2013
Valuation
category
according to
IAS 39

31/12/2012

Carrying
amount
T€

Fair value
T€

Carrying
amount
T€

Fair value
T€

7,498
3,021
163
508,453
91,370
694,590
1,305,095

7,498
3,021
163
508,453
91,370
694,590
1,305,095

7,701
3,167
163
477,381
74,274
623,860
1,186,546

7,701
3,167
163
477,381
74,274
623,860
1,186,546

1,194
1,194

1,194
1,194

0
0

0
0

Total

– 14,839
– 616,758
– 81,777
– 713,374
592,915

– 14,839
– 616,758
– 81,777
– 713,374
592,915

– 40,481
– 561,620
– 74,651
– 676,752
509,794

– 40,481
– 561,620
– 74,651
– 676,752
509,794

By valuation categories
Loans and Receivables (L&R)
Available for sale (AfS)
Financial liabilities at amortized costs (FLaC)
Derivatives for hedging purposes
Total

1,294,576
10,519
– 713.374
1,194
592,915

1,294,576
10,519
– 713,374
1,194
592,915

1,175,678
10,868
– 676,752
0
509,794

1,175,678
10,868
– 676,752
0
509,794

ASSETS
Valuation at amortized cost
Shares in affiliated companies
Participations
Loans to affiliated companies
Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

AfS
AfS
L&R
L&R
L&R
L&R

Valuation at fair value
Derivatives for hedging purposes
LIABILITIES
Valuation at cost of purchase
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

FLaC
FLaC
FLaC

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets have short residual terms in the vast
majority of cases. Therefore, their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date equate approximately to their
fair values. Loans are mainly interest-bearing. Their carrying value therefore corresponds to the present value
of the financial assets. The shares in affiliated companies and participations are measured at cost, since their
fair values cannot be reliably determined. Derivatives for hedging purposes are not traded in an active market.
Their fair value is determined using valuation methods based on observable market data. In specific cases,
interest and currency curves that match the term of the derivative are used for the valuation.
Trade payables as well as other financial liabilities have short terms, as a rule; the reported figures more or less
represent their fair values. The fair values of payables to banks and finance lease liabilities are calculated as
the present values of the payments associated therewith, taking account of the respective market parameters
applicable.
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Net earnings from financial instruments according to valuation categories break down as follows:

Interest
Impairments of value, losses on
receivables, reinstatements of original
value
Capital gains/losses
Income from the derecognition of liabilities
Incoming payments from receivables that
have been written off
Net earnings

L&R
2013
T€
19,831

AfS
2013
T€
0

FLaC
2013
T€
– 2,191

L&R
2012
T€
13,944

AfS
2012
T€
0

FLaC
2012
T€
– 3,368

– 8,026
0
0

– 419
31
0

0
0
1,337

– 4,303
0

– 476
0
0

0
0
2,033

0
11,805

0
– 388

116
– 738

0
9,641

0
– 476

0
– 1,335

Dividends and expenses from participations which are shown in results from participations are part of the
operating result and are therefore not part of net earnings. Impairments of value, reinstatements of original
value, gains on disposals and losses on disposals of loans and receivables (L&R) as well as financial liabilities
at amortized cost (FLaC) are shown in other income or other expenses.
Impairments of value, reinstatements of original value, gains on disposal and losses on disposal of available
for sale financial instruments (AfS) are shown in results from participations if they are participations or shares in
affiliated companies, and otherwise in other income and other expenses.
With regard to outstanding loans and receivables that have neither been written down nor are in default, there
are no signs as at the balance sheet date indicating that the debtors will not fulfil their payment obligations.
Principles of risk management
With regard to its assets, liabilities and planned transactions, the Züblin Group is exposed to interest rate,
currency, credit and liquidity risks. The aim of financial risk management is to limit these risks through ongoing
finance-oriented activities.
The basic principles of the financial policy are laid down by the Management Board and monitored by the
Supervisory Board. The implementation of this financial policy and ongoing risk management is the
responsibility of Group Treasury of BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne.
Certain transactions require prior approval by the Management Board, which is kept regularly informed of the
extent and the amount of current risk exposure.
Interest rate risk
The interest rate of financial instruments, both on the assets and the liabilities side, is generally variable.
Accordingly, the risk consists in rising interest expense or a lower interest yield resulting from disadvantageous
changes of the market interest rate.
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The volume of receivables from and payables to banks by currency – with details of the average interest rates
as at the balance sheet date – breaks down as follows:
Balances with banks

EUR
AED
CNY
DKK
SEK
PLN
Other

Payables to banks

EUR

Carrying
amount
T€
626,430
19,605
17,975
7,642
7,569
4,248
7,831
691,300

Average
interest rate
2013
0.36%
0.35%
1.86%
0.00%
0.60%
2.74%
0.48%
0.41%

Carrying
amount
T€
4,769

Average
interest rate
2013
2.19%

If the level of interest rates had been 50 basis points higher (lower) as at 31 December 2013, earnings and
equity would have been T € 3,614 higher (lower) (previous year: T € 3,075 higher (lower)). The calculation is
based on closing volumes of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013. Tax
effects resulting from changes in interest rates were not taken into consideration in the calculation.
In 2013, hedging transactions were concluded for hedged items amounting to T € 166,070. The negative
value of the hedging transactions comes to T € 270 and was recognized through the income statement.
Currency risk
In essence, there is exposure to currency risks at Züblin International GmbH and Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH
and their subsidiaries and investments. As a rule, construction contracts are obtained in the national currency
in operational business and their implementation including tasking sub-contractors is also largely carried out in
the national currency.
Materials are also purchased locally, in the national currency (natural hedge), as a rule. Currency risk only
emerges if personnel and/or equipment need to be deployed from Germany or from financial transfers from
Germany or from a transfer of the share in the earnings. Translation risks may also result from the conversion
of results from companies reporting in foreign currency in the Züblin consolidated financial statements.
Derivative financial instruments are used to limit this currency risk and to secure the calculation. As at 31 December 2013, there are hedging transactions for hedged items of T € 43,307 (previous year: T € 7,493) from
which half the cash flows are expected in 2014 and half in 2015. The positive market values come to
T € 1,194 (previous year: T € 0). T € 1,194 (previous year: T € 0) from this hedge were recognised through the
income statement.
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Changes in major Group currencies:

Currency
AED
CLP
CNY
HUF
SEK

Rate on balance
sheet date
31/12/2013
1 Euro =
5.057
724.488
8.349
297.040
8.859

Average rate
2013
1 Euro =
4.886
664.349
8.173
297.933
8.669

Rate on balance
sheet date
31/12/2012
1 Euro =
4.842
631.202
8.221
292.300
8.582

Average rate
2012
1 Euro =
4.745
629.011
8.145
288.214
8.684

A change in the earnings for the year because of unhedged currency positions in the case of primary financial
instruments would influence earnings by T € 8,969 (previous year: T € 6,777) in the event of an average
change in the exchange rate of 10%. The calculation is based on closing volumes of financial assets and
liabilities at the respective year-end.
Credit risk
As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk to which financial assets without cash and cash
equivalents are exposed is T € 611,699 (previous year: T € 562,686) and equates to the carrying amounts
shown in the balance sheet. Of this figure, T € 508,453 (previous year: T € 477,381) relate to trade receivables.
Receivables from construction contracts and from joint ventures relate to ongoing construction projects and
are therefore not yet due in their entirety. Of the other trade receivables amounting to T € 132,099 (previous
year: T € 116,273), only insignificant amounts are overdue and not written down.
The recoverability of construction receivables is constantly reviewed from aspects of country risk in the operational units responsible for the construction activity and from the respective client’s actual default risk. In the
case of private clients, receivables are hedged via credit management instruments such as payment guarantees, if applicable. In the case of traditional building construction contracts, the risk of loss of receivables is
often reduced by advance payments from the clients. Default risks are taken into account through individual
value adjustments.
The default risk with respect to other primary financial instruments on the assets side is also considered to be
low since the contract partners are exclusively financial institutes of excellent standing.
Furthermore, there was an indirect credit risk from liabilities assumed in the case of financial guarantees to the
amount of T € 1,400 in the previous year.
Specific allowances of financial assets are made if the carrying amount of the financial asset is higher than the
present value of the future cash flows. The disclosure is made by using separate value adjustment accounts.
Financial difficulties, breach of contract, the customer’s insolvency, considerable delays in payment by the
customer are used as triggers for this. If a receivable is unrecoverable, it is derecognized. The specific
allowances comprise numerous individual items, of which none is material when considered individually. In
addition to the assessment of the credit risk, account is also taken of the respective country risk.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity for the Züblin Group not only signifies cash in hand and credit balances with banks in the narrower
sense but also the cash and guarantee credit lines available.
The Züblin Group has bilateral cash credit lines totalling some € 10 million, which may, however, also be used
by other companies within the STRABAG SE Group. In 2013, Ed. Züblin AG did not make use of the bilateral
cash credit lines.
As before, Ed. Züblin AG has bilateral guarantee facilities totalling € 450 million at its disposal. In addition, it
participates in STRABAG SE’s syndicated guarantee facility, which totals € 2.0 billion.
Financial liabilities result in the following payment obligations (interest payments calculated on the basis of the
interest rate as at 31/December and repayments) in subsequent years:

Financial liabilities
Payables to banks
Payables arising from finance leases

Carrying
amount
31/12/2013
T€

≤ 1 year
T€

Cash flows
1-5 years
T€

> 5 years
T€

4,769
10,070
14,839

2,666
1,476
4,142

0
10,213
10,213

0
0
0

Trade payables and other liabilities (see [19]) lead in essence to cash outflows equal to their carrying amounts
as they fall due.

(23) Business with related parties
Business with related parties is to be disclosed and explained in accordance with IAS 24.
In addition to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board, both natural persons and legal entities and
companies which can control the reporting company or one of its subsidiaries or can exercise a decisive
influence, either directly or indirectly, on the reporting company or its subsidiaries are considered as related
parties in the sense of IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, as well as those natural persons and legal entities
which the reporting company can control or on which it can exercise a decisive influence.
In particular, STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, with its direct and indirect subsidiaries and companies consolidated at equity, to which 57.26% of the shares in Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart are attributable, counts as an
important related party.
Furthermore, the core shareholders of STRABAG SE, the Haselsteiner Group (Haselsteiner Family Private
Foundation, Dr. Hans Peter Haselsteiner), the Raiffeisen-Holding Niederösterreich-Wien Group (Vienna/
Austria), the UNIQA Group (Vienna/Austria) and Rasperia Trading Limited (Limassol/Cyprus), which is con
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trolled by Mr Oleg V. Deripaska (Moscow/Russian Federation) are to be viewed as related parties in the case
of Ed. Züblin AG.
Material transactions as defined in this provision were undertaken by companies in the Züblin Group with
companies in whose management or supervisory bodies these people are represented. These companies are
mainly to be attributed to STRABAG SE.
In addition, Ed. Züblin AG companies have not undertaken any material transactions with members of the
Management Board or Supervisory Board of Ed. Züblin AG. This is also true of close family members of this
group of people. Remuneration for employees in key positions encompasses the benefits due in the short
term presented under the disclosures on management and supervisory bodies and post-employment
benefits.
STRABAG SE has agreed with Ed. Züblin AG that the two companies will provide each other with mutual
support in tendering and bidding in foreign markets. In as much as Züblin has promised references or more
extensive support, it has been released from expenses and risks vis-à-vis third parties by STRABAG SE.
In the 2013 financial year, the Züblin Group had the following relations with related parties of the STRABAG SE
Group:

Goods and services supplied
Goods and services received
Receivables as at 31/12
Payables as at 31/12

2013
T€
235,784
162,952
17,413
24,734

2012
T€
230,741
191,590
18,073
15,967

The equity participation BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne (abbreviated
to: BRVZ) supplies commercial, administrative and information technology services for Ed. Züblin AG and its
affiliated companies, which are charged at cost of sales.
The equity participation BMTI – Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne (abbreviated to:
BMTI) supplies services to Ed Züblin AG and its affiliated companies relating to equipment planning,
investment and disinvestment in the equipment pool as well as maintenance and repairs, which are charged
at cost of sales.
In the 2013 financial year, Ed. Züblin AG sold 10% of its shares in BMTI to Ilbau Liegenschaftsverwaltung
GmbH for a purchase price of € 0.3 million.
The transactions are included in the table above.
Additional reportable transactions accrued in the 2013 financial year:
In 2013, Ed. Züblin AG received retrospective purchase price adjustment payments of € 0.7 million from the
ongoing contractual process regarding the purchase of the construction and civil engineering activities by the
STRABAG AG Group dating from the 2006 financial year.
In the past 2013 financial year, Ed. Züblin AG granted STRABAG SE a short-term loan. STRABAG SE made
use of the loan up to a maximum figure of € 110.8 million.
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Normal third party financing and insurance transactions were conducted with the Raiffeisen-Holding Niederösterreich-Wien Group and the UNIQA Group.
There are many legal transactions with other companies where members of the Supervisory Board and the
Management Board fulfil management roles. However, these are included in the STRABAG SE figures; please
see the table above “Related parties STRABAG SE Group”.
The Züblin Group also had the following business relationships with associates in the 2013 financial year:

Goods and services supplied
Goods and services received
Receivables as at 31/12
Payables as at 31/12

2013
T€
5,395
587
42,681
44

2012
T€
2,591
1,019
13,275
5

There were suretyships and guarantees for associates of some € 20.8 million in the reporting year (previous
year: € 21.2 million). There are no financial guarantees in the reporting year (previous year: € 1.4 million).
Ed. Züblin AG maintains normal business relations with affiliated subsidiaries that are not consolidated. Transactions with these related parties are the result of normal business dealings.
The Züblin Group also had the following business relationships with affiliated companies that are not consolidated in the 2013 financial year:

Goods and services supplied
Goods and services received
Receivables as at 31/12
Payables as at 31/12

2013
T€
14,665
9,288
8,683
2,878

2012
T€
1,789
10,050
14,489
2,861

The value adjustments on receivables due from affiliated companies that are not consolidated, which have
been taken into account in the table above, are explained under [12] and [15].
There were suretyships and guarantees for affiliated companies which were not consolidated of some € 0.1
million in the financial year (previous year: € 0.9 million).
All legal transactions were charged at normal market conditions.
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(24) Management and supervisory bodies
Management Board
Dipl.-Ing. Jörn Beckmann M. Eng., Cologne
Technical Director

Dipl.-Kfm. Hans-Joachim Rühlig, Ostfildern
Commercial Director (until 31 December 2013)

Dipl.-Ing. Olaf Demuth, Hamburg
Technical Director (as from 12 March 2013)

Dipl.-Ing. Edgar Schömig, Stuttgart
Technical Director

Dipl.-Ing. Karl-Heinz Müller, Rösrath
Technical Director

Dr. Alexander Tesche, Sindelfingen
Commercial Director

Dipl.-Ing. Klaus Pöllath, Stuttgart
Technical Director

Dipl.-Betriebswirt (FH) Ulrich Weinmann,
Stuttgart,
Technical Director (as from 1 January 2014)

Holders of General Power of Attorney
Dipl.-Ing. Olaf Demuth, Hamburg
(until 12 March 2013)
Marina Humitsch, Spittal/Drau (Austria)
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Supervisory Board
Dr. Jürgen Kuchenwald, Cologne
Chairman
Former Chairman of the Management Board of
STRABAG AG, Cologne

Dr. Peter Krammer, Vienna (Austria)
Member of the Management Board of STRABAG SE,
Villach (Austria)

Wolfgang Kreis, Linkenheim*
Deputy Chairman
Chairman of the Joint Works Council of
Ed. Züblin AG

Dr. Götz Sadtler, Bonn
Lawyer

Helmut Betz, Stuttgart*
Construction Commercial Manager, Sub-Division
Stuttgart of Ed. Züblin AG

Dipl.-Kfm. Werner Schneider, Senden
Managing Partner in Schneider & Geiwitz GmbH,
Neu-Ulm

Dr. Thomas Birtel, Mülheim/Ruhr
Hartmut Storbeck, Hamburg*
Chairman of the Management Board of STRABAG SE, Chairman of the Works Council, Sub-Division
Villach (Austria)
Nord/North of Ed. Züblin AG
Inge Hamm, Stuttgart*
Klaus Ulrich, Lahnstein*
Regional Manager of the trade union
Branch Secretary of the trade union
IG Bauen-Agrar-Umwelt, Baden-Württemberg Region IG Bauen-Agrar-Umwelt
National Executive Board, Frankfurt/Main
Dipl.-Ing. Roland Jurecka, Leonding (Austria)
Former Member of the Management Board of
STRABAG SE, Villach (Austria)

Dr. Thomas Voigt, Stuttgart*
Sub-Division Manager of the Central Engineering
Division of Ed. Züblin AG

* Employee representatives

The total emoluments of the members of the Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG, including their remuneration for fulfilling their responsibilities in subsidiaries, amount to T € 2,458 (previous year: T € 2,978). For this
group of persons, pension provisions of T € 1,026 (previous year: T € 837) were available at the end of the
reporting year.
Former members of the Management Board and their surviving dependants received T € 1,075 (previous year:
T € 1,051). Pension provisions of T € 14,588 (previous year: T € 14,535) are available for them.
The emoluments of the Supervisory Board totalled T € 40 (previous year: T € 40).
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(25) Proposal on the appropriation of proﬁts
In its separate ﬁnancial statements prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code, Ed. Züblin
AG is reporting a net proﬁt for 2013 of € 24,736,072.30 (previous year: T € 59,918). Of this ﬁgure,
€ 12,368,000.00 were transferred to other retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German
Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
The Management Board is proposing to pay a dividend of € 0.1025 per no-par share entitled to dividends (=
8,000,000 shares), which is € 820,000.00 in total, to the shareholders from the net proﬁt of € 12,368,596.10,
to allocate an amount of € 11,548,000.00 to other retained earnings to further strengthen shareholders’ equity
and carrying the remaining amount of € 596.10 forward to new account.

(26) Special occurrences after the closing date
Apart from the acquisition of the Ports and Coast business segment, no transactions of major signiﬁcance
have occurred since the reporting date.

(27) Other disclosures
In the 2013 ﬁnancial year, a total of T € 540 (previous year: T € 559) was recorded in expenses for the auditors
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Düsseldorf, for auditing the accounts,
T € 7 (previous year: T € 6) for other conﬁrmation or valuation services and T € 4 (previous year: T € 15) for
other services.

Address of the Group’s parent company:
Ed. Züblin AG
Albstadtweg 3
70567 Stuttgart/Germany
Tel.
+49 711 7883-0
Telefax
+49 711 7883-390
www.zueblin.de

Stuttgart, 9 April 2014
Ed. Züblin AG
The Management Board

Beckmann
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Dr. Tesche
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart – comprising the
consolidated income statement and the statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet,
the consolidated cash flow statement, the statement of changes in equity and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements – together with the Group management report, which is combined with the management
report of Ed. Züblin AG for the business year from 01 January 2013 to 31 December 2013. The preparation of
the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report and Group management
report in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a Para. 1 HGB and the additional provisions of the Articles of Association are
the responsibility of the company’s legal representatives. It is our responsibility to express an opinion, based
on our audit, on the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report and Group
management report.
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 317 HGB (German
Commercial Code) and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
such that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework and in the combined management report and Group management report are detected with
reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the
Group and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of the audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and in the combined management report and Group
management report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit
includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation principles employed and
significant estimates made by the company’s legal representatives, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report and Group
management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG for
the business year from 01 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 comply with the IFRSs, as adopted by the EU,
and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a Para. 1 HGB and the additional provisions of the Articles of Association and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position
and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these requirements. The combined management
report and Group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as a whole
provides a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future
development.
Düsseldorf, 9 April 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Weißmeier
Certified auditor

Gottschalk
Certified auditor
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